Annual Report 2013





New Zealand Limited

Contents

1.0	Introducing Heartland Bank	4
2.0	Highlights	7
3.0	Chairman and Managing Director's Report	8
4.0	Board of Directors	12
5.0	Corporate Governance	16
6.0	Directors' Responsibility Statement	19
7.0	Financial Statements	20
8.0	Audit Report	62
9.0	Director Disclosures and Executive Remuneration	64
10.0	Shareholder Information	68
11.0	Other Information	70
12.0	Executives and Directory	71

PG

1.0 Introducing Heartland Bank

On 17th December 2012, we achieved our key objective of bank registration. Heartland Bank became the only New Zealand operated, controlled and managed banking group with a parent company listed on the New Zealand stock exchange. We are a bank with a rich kiwi heritage and a strong commitment to New Zealand - this is our home. We are dedicated to the success of the productive sector, small to medium enterprises, farmers and families the length of New Zealand. It is amongst these heartland communities, critical to the economic prosperity of our nation, that we want to be of service. Our name symbolises our close connection with our communities, our customers and our land.

Demonstrating Our Difference

We want to be known as New Zealand's specialist bank. By delivering specialised, best-in-breed products that dominate our chosen niches, we will help our customers where it really matters. When other banks offer standard rural mortgages or business loans secured on property, we've developed loans secured against livestock, or against the plant and machinery assets being purchased. Thanks to our motor vehicle finance, over 16,000 New Zealanders and over 6,500 businesses purchased their own car last year.

So whether it's a retiree looking to make their savings work hard, a farmer managing

the pressures of seasonal income, or a small business owner wanting easier access to their money, we offer stand-out products designed to make it easier for them.

This strategy is already working for us. Over the last financial year our specialist product focus resulted in:

- Our newly launched Business Call Account attracting over \$115m in deposits
- Invoice Finance growth of over 70%
- Livestock Finance and Rural Seasonal Capital growing by 10% and 9% respectively
- Motor Vehicle Finance growth of nearly 14%
- Net Operating Income growth of \$12m or 13%

Our products and commitment to service excellence have already gained independent endorsement from financial products research company, Canstar. The Heartland Saver, Heartland Everyday Account and Heartland Business Call Account, have all been awarded the Five Star 'Outstanding Value' award in their category.

Strong communities are the backbone of our productive economy, and locally, our people are at the heart of the communities we serve. From school sports to small businesses, from farming to artists, we are committed to strengthening our communities and developing the leaders of the future.

We are Heartland Bank - proud to be different.

"Heartland will continue to be New Zealand focussed and is part of a new breed of banks"

Our People



Supporting our Communities



"Rugby at MAGS has challenged me to not only be the best I can but through rugby it has taught me life skills of commitment, perseverance and the meaning of team work. The rugby environment has also challenged me to be a better person and continually asks me to contribute to the excellence that is demanded by all the players. It has helped me learn about being focussed at all times and how to cope with pressure." Mount Albert Grammar School (MAGS), 1st XV

"The Citizens Club is a lovely place to come. Everything is here for us, I don't know what I'd do without it." Mrs J Tait (patron) Tauranga Citizens Club

"Playing rugby means a great deal to our school and our community. Education and student achievement is at the forefront of the work we are doing at Tangaroa College and for the boys that are in the 1A 1st XV, the rugby programme contributes and enhances the education and opportunity for student achievement."

Ngaire Ashmore, Principal, Tangaroa College, Auckland Co-Educational Schools 1st XV Champions, 2013

"Knowing that our money is being looked after is important to us. Feeling that we are being looked after too is a wonderful bonus."

Mr & Mrs Horan, Heartland Bank Customers

2.0 Highlights

Highlights for the Year

- Bank registration achieved.
- Net Operating Income and lending increased across the three core areas of Business, Rural and Consumer.
- Dividend policy set, interim dividend of 2.0 cents per share paid.
- Final dividend of 2.5 cents per share announced.
- Investment grade credit rating affirmed.
- Implementation of new strategy for non-core legacy property asset portfolio.
- Real Estate Credit Limited agreement terminated.
- Board strengthened with new appointments.

Financial year overview	30 June 2013	30 June 2012
Net Profit Before Tax	\$9.4m	\$20.3m
Net Profit After Tax ¹	\$6.9m	\$23.6m
Total assets	\$2504.6m	\$2,348.1m
Net finance receivables	\$2010.4m	\$2078.3m
Total equity	\$370.5m	\$374.8m
Equity ratio	14.8%	16.0%

1 As a result of the change in non-core property strategy, a one-off non-cash write down of \$18m (pre-tax) was incurred, and pre-paid expenses of \$6.1m were written off. Adjusted NPAT (calculated as Net Profit After Tax plus one-off non-cash expenses incurred as a result of the change in strategy) was \$24.4m.

3.0 Chairman and Managing Director's Report



Geoffrey Ricketts Chairman



Jeffrey Greenslade Managing Director

This has been a significant year for Heartland. As well as realising our key objective – to become a New Zealand owned and controlled banking group with its parent company listed on the NZX¹ – we have also undertaken a significant number of strategic initiatives to consolidate and build a pathway to the future.

Breakdown of financial performance

For the full year ended 30 June 2013, we announced a net profit after tax (**NPAT**) of \$6.9m. This was in line with expectation, but down \$16.7m from the \$23.6m for the previous year ended 30 June 2012. The result was impacted by measures taken with the non-core property asset portfolio that we announced in June 2013 and are detailed on page 9. If this adjustment had not been made then Adjusted NPAT would have been \$24.4m (Adjusted NPAT is calculated by adding back one-off non-cash expenses incurred as a result of the change in strategy to the headline result). The original forecast NPAT guidance for 2013 was \$21-\$24m.

Net profit before tax (**NPBT**) was \$9.4m for the full year ended 30 June 2013, down from \$20.3m NPBT for the previous year ended 30 June 2012.

Adjusted NPBT for the year ended 30 June 2013 was \$33.7m, an increase of \$13.4m over the previous year ended 30 June 2012 and illustrating the improvements in underlying business performance. Adjusted NPBT is calculated by excluding the one-off expenses of \$24.3m (pre-tax) incurred as a result of the change in strategy with respect to the non-core legacy property asset portfolio (which included termination of the management agreement with Real Estate Credit Limited (**RECL**) announced 5 June 2013) (**Change in Strategy**)². Earnings Per Share was \$0.02 based on weighted average shares on issue.

Balance sheet³

Heartland's total assets increased by \$156.5m or 7% over the full year ended 30 June 2013 (from \$2.3bn at 30 June 2012 to \$2.5bn at 30 June 2013).

- There was a \$76.1m increase in the "core" business net finance receivables (Business, Rural and Consumer channels). However, due to a reduction in non-core assets of legacy property and retail mortgages, net finance receivables reduced in total by \$67.9m (from \$2.1bn at 30 June 2012 to \$2.0bn at 30 June 2013).
- Cash and cash equivalents and investments increased by \$225.5m (from \$114.0m at 30 June 2012 to \$339.5m at 30 June 2013) reflecting a change to holding higher levels of liquid assets to support ongoing liquidity targets.
- Borrowings, being largely retail deposits, increased by \$158.1m (from \$1.9bn at 30 June 2012 to \$2.1bn at 30 June 2013), funding asset growth.

Heartland's Net Tangible Assets (**NTA**) decreased by \$12.5m over the full year ended 30 June 2013 (from \$343.7m at 30 June 2012 to \$331.2m at 30 June 2013) due to the one-off non-cash write-down in property assets by \$18m (pre-tax) on the Change in Strategy. On a per share basis NTA was \$0.85 at 30 June 2013 compared to \$0.88 at 30 June 2012.

Net Operating Income

Net Operating Income (**NOI**) was \$106.9m for the full year ended 30 June 2013, an increase of \$12m or 13% from the previous year ended 30 June 2012. The increase in NOI was attributable to lower cost of funds and improved product mix.

Costs

Operating costs were \$70.3m for the full year ended 30 June 2013, an increase of \$4.8m from the previous year ended 30 June 2012. However, operating costs for the full year

2. For details of the Change in Strategy, see Heartland's market announcement of 5 June 2013.

3. Heartland Trust and CBS Canterbury Charitable Trust were deconsolidated on 1 July 2012.

¹ Heartland Bank became a registered bank on 17 December 2012, and converted to a company on 31 January 2013. The corporatisation process included a change in Heartland Bank's name from its previous name "Heartland Building Society" to its current name "Heartland Bank Limited".

ended 30 June 2013 include \$6.1m of prepaid expenses written-off as a result of the Change in Strategy⁴. Adjusted operating costs (calculated by excluding expenses related to the Change in Strategy) were down \$1.5m (2%) from the full year ended 30 June 2012.

The operating expense ratio was 66% for the full year ended 30 June 2013, a reduction from 69% for the previous year ended 30 June 2012. The adjusted operating expense ratio (calculated by excluding the write-off of the expenses referred to above) was 60% for the full year ended 30 June 2013.

Impairments and revaluations of investment properties

Impaired asset expense was \$22.5m for the full year ended 30 June 2013, an increase of \$16.9m from the previous year ended 30 June 2012. This increase was primarily in the Non-Core Property division and included an impairment expense of \$12.9m made as part of the Change in Strategy⁵. Impairments remained low in the core areas of Business, Rural and Consumer lending.

As part of the Change in Strategy a \$5.1m fair value adjustment was also made against investment properties⁵.

Asset quality continues to improve with net impaired, restructured and past due loans over 90 days standing at \$49.0m or 2.4% of net finance receivables (**Net Impairment Ratio**) as at 30 June 2013; down from \$90.5m (or 4.4% of net finance receivables) as at 30 June 2012. The Non-Core Property book made up \$31.2m of the impaired, restructured and past due loans at 30 June 2013.

The Net Impairment Ratio on the core business (excluding the Non-Core Property book) was 0.9% as at 30 June 2013, compared to 1.3% as at 30 June 2012.

Funding and liquidity

Deposits increased from \$1.6bn at 30 June 2012 to \$1.8bn at 30 June 2013. This increase was driven by a positive customer reaction to the achievement of bank registration and subsequent product initiatives in retail deposit products of Heartland Bank Limited (**Heartland Bank**) (Heartland's principal operating subsidiary). The liquidity of Heartland Bank was \$578.0m as at 30 June 2013, which consisted of cash, liquid assets and unutilised available funding lines. This included additional liquidity held pending the \$106m repayment of NZX Debt Market quoted bonds on 15 July 2013. The liquidity mix continues to evolve, with increased holdings of cash and liquid assets replacing unutilised or cancelled bank funding lines.

Investment grade rating reaffirmed

On 16 May 2013 Standard & Poor's affirmed Heartland Bank's investment grade credit rating of BBB- and as a result of its assessment of New Zealand's economic vulnerabilities changed the outlook to 'negative' from 'stable'.

Business Performance – Heartland's Core Business Divisions

Business

Primarily driven by lower cost of funds, NOI increased to \$25.7m, up \$4.7m (22%) from the previous year ended 30 June 2012.

The business receivables book increased by \$8.9m to \$549.2m during the year ended 30 June 2013. Continued growth is expected in line with credit growth expectations.

Rural

NOI increased to \$22.9m, up \$3.7m (20%) from the previous year ended 30 June 2012. This was driven by the inclusion of a full twelve months earnings from the PGG Wrightson Finance Limited (**PWF**) book as well as lower cost of funds.

Due to the settlement of \$23.2m of recourse loans by PGG Wrightson Limited under a guarantee provided to Heartland Bank as part of the acquisition of PWF, the rural receivables book contracted from \$478.6m to \$456.6m during the full year ended 30 June 2013. Excluding these loans, the Rural book increased slightly over the year despite the impact of the recent drought resulting in lower demand in livestock trading.

Retail & Consumer

Growth in motor vehicle lending, along with lower cost of funds, resulted in an increase

of NOI to \$50.2m, up \$5.1m (11%) from the previous year ended 30 June 2012.

The Retail & Consumer receivables book was flat over the full year ended 30 June 2013, with motor vehicle receivables growth of \$89.0m (14%) offset by an \$88.4m (27%) reduction in the residential mortgage book.

The reduction in the residential mortgage book reflects Heartland Bank's strategy to focus on its core activities in Business, Rural and Consumer lending, replacing lower margin business with higher margin business which offers a better risk/return. As previously announced, Heartland Bank has entered into an exclusive arrangement with Kiwibank under which Heartland Bank customers can now access Kiwibank's market leading residential mortgage products.

Non-core Business

Property

Total legacy non-core property assets were \$107.4m at 30 June 2013, a reduction of \$52.7m (33%) from 30 June 2012. The non-core property assets were made up of net receivables of \$49.1m and investment properties of \$58.3m.

The reduction included the impact of the one-off non-cash write down of \$18m (pre-tax) due to the Change in Strategy. The new strategy provides Heartland with greater flexibility to manage the portfolio and to best balance an exit strategy with maximising shareholder value. Heartland is confident earnings will now normalise, and no longer be impacted by the performance of the non-core legacy property assets.

Investment properties held on balance sheet increased by \$2.8m during the full year ended 30 June 2013. This increase was the result of additional assets received as part of the termination of the RECL management agreement, offset by the \$5.1m fair value adjustment made as part of the Change in Strategy.

Non-core property assets fell a further \$8.9m in July 2013 through realisations, subsequent to balance date pursuant to the Change in Strategy.

⁴ Specifically, the termination of the RECL management agreement as part of that Change in Strategy. 5. As part of the one-off non-cash write down in property assets by \$18m (pre-tax) on the Change in Strategy.

3.0 Chairman and Managing Director's Report Continued

Final Dividend

The directors of Heartland have resolved to pay a final dividend for the full year ended 30 June 2013 of 2.5 cents per share. This dividend will be paid on 4 October 2013 to shareholders who were on Heartland's register at 5.00pm on 20 September 2013 (the **Record Date**). This dividend will be fully imputed.

The Dividend Reinvestment Plan announced on 23 April 2013 (**DRP**) was available, and a discount of 2.5% applied (that is, the strike price under the DRP was 97.5% of the volume weighted average sale price of Heartland shares over the five trading days following the Record Date)⁶. Participation in the DRP was entirely optional, and shareholders who wished to participate in the DRP for any future dividend payments made a participation election in one of the ways specified in the DRP offer document. The last date of receipt for a participation election from a shareholder who wished to participate in the DRP was 20 September 2013.

The Future

We have now completed the 'start-up' phase of our strategy and are entering a phase of 'Business As Usual' environment where we also complete the alignment of activity and investment with our strategy.

Our strategy is simple. We want to be known as New Zealand's specialist bank.

We will continue to be dedicated to the drivers of prosperity and productivity, with a balanced focus across our key sectors of Business, Rural and Consumer. Within these sectors we will apply our agility and ability to identify niche areas in which we can lead with superior, high-income, low contestability products – products that must support the essential needs of productive New Zealanders. Our result for the full year to 30 June 2013 demonstrates that the strategic model works. We have made a good start, focusing on our key areas of expertise – processing, distribution and products – but to build on this foundation we must improve our product mix in order to realise a No.1. or No.2. position in these markets. Targeting growth in high value products will offset our expectation that credit growth will remain largely constrained.

Alongside changes and enhancements in our business performance, we also plan further improvements in our operational performance by further reductions in our cost of funds and operating cost. However, we do expect this to be nominal and more relative to a cost/income ratio as the mergers of our legacy operating systems reach fruition.

Profit guidance for the next financial year (ending 30 June 2014) is for forecast NPAT of \$34m-\$37m.

Geoffrey Ricketts Chairman

much

Jeffrey Greenslade Managing Director 20 September 2013

6. For the full details of the DRP and the Strike Price calculation, refer to Heartland's market announcement of 23 April 2013 which included the DRP offer document prepared as at 5 April 2013.





4.0 Board of Directors

As at the date of this Annual Report, the directors of Heartland New Zealand Limited are as follows:

Gary Leech

BCom, FCA, AF Inst D, FNZTA

Director

Gary has 40 years' experience as a chartered accountant, and was the Chairman of the Board of CBS Canterbury leading up to the merger with MARAC Finance Limited and Southern Cross Building Society. Gary is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants, an Accredited Fellow of the Institute of Directors and a Fellow of the New Zealand Trustees Association.

Christopher Mace

Director

Chris is an Auckland based businessman and company director with experience in the New Zealand and Australian business environments. He holds a number of directorships and was a director of Southern Cross Building Society leading up to the merger with MARAC Finance Limited and CBS Canterbury.

Graham Kennedy

J.P., BCom, FCA, ACIS, ACIM, AF Inst D

Director

Graham has 40 years' experience as a chartered accountant and business advisor and is now an independent professional director and Chairman of a number of private companies. Graham was a director of CBS Canterbury for 24 years, holding the position of Chairman from 2002 – 2008. Graham has also been actively involved in a number of community-based charitable organisations for many years.



Geoffrey Ricketts CNZM, LLB (Hons), F Inst D

Chairman

Geoff is a commercial lawyer, company director and investor with wide experience in the New Zealand and Australian business environments. He holds a number of directorships and was Chairman of Southern Cross Building Society leading up to the merger with MARAC Finance Limited and CBS Canterbury.

Jeffrey Greenslade

Managing Director

Jeff has over 20 years' experience as a senior banking executive, and is responsible for the strategy and operational delivery of Heartland Bank Limited. He joined MARAC Finance Limited as Chief Executive Officer in 2009, and was appointed to its Board in December of that year.

Gregory Tomlinson

Director

Greg is a Christchurch based businessman and investor with experience in a variety of New Zealand industries. One of the original pioneers of the mussel industry in Marlborough, he has also established, and held directorships on the boards of, a number of New Zealand based businesses, including a private equity company focusing on investment opportunities within New Zealand. As at the date of this Annual Report, the Heartland Bank Limited Board includes J G Greenslade, G T Ricketts and G R Kennedy, plus the following directors who, other than M D Jonas (who is an executive director), are independent directors:

Geoffrey Ricketts

CNZM, LLB (Hons), F Inst D

Chairman

Geoff is a commercial lawyer, company director and investor with wide experience in the New Zealand and Australian business environments. He holds a number of directorships and was Chairman of Southern Cross Building Society leading up to the merger with MARAC Finance Limited and CBS Canterbury.

Jeffrey Greenslade

Managing Director

Jeff has over 20 years' experience as a senior banking executive, and is responsible for the strategy and operational delivery of Heartland Bank Limited. He joined MARAC Finance Limited as Chief Executive Officer in 2009, and was appointed to its Board in December of that year.

Graham Kennedy

J.P., BCom, FCA, ACIS, ACIM, AF Inst D

Director

Graham has 40 years' experience as a chartered accountant and business advisor and is now an independent professional director and Chairman of a number of private companies. Graham was a director of CBS Canterbury for 24 years, holding the position of Chairman from 2002 – 2008. Graham has also been actively involved in a number of community-based charitable organisations for many years.

Bruce Irvine

BCom, LLB, FCA, AF Inst D, FNZIM

Chairman

Bruce is Chairman of Heartland Bank Limited. He is a chartered accountant and was admitted into the Christchurch partnership of Deloitte in 1988. He was Managing Partner from 1995 to 2007 before his retirement from Deloitte in May 2008 to pursue his career as an independent director. Bruce is also Chairman of Christchurch City Holdings Limited, and a director of several public and private companies.

Nicola Greer

Director

Nicola has extensive experience in the banking and finance sector, both in New Zealand and overseas. Her career to date includes senior positions at ANZ Bank (New Zealand and Australia), Citibank and Goldman Sachs International, where she worked in financial markets and asset and liability management.



Pictured (from left) Michael Jonas, Graham Kennedy, Richard Wilks, John Harvey, Bruce Irvine, Nicola Greer, Geoffrey Ricketts, Jeffrey Greenslade.

John Harvey BCom, CA

Director

John has considerable financial services experience and 36 years in the professional services industry, including 23 years as a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers. Since his retirement from PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2009, John has pursued a career as an independent director of a number of companies.

Michael Jonas

Director

Michael has over 25 years' experience as a banking and finance lawyer, having been a partner in several of New Zealand's leading law firms (including Bell Gully and Chapman Tripp). He was appointed as Group General Counsel for Heartland New Zealand Limited upon its creation in 2011 (having held that position with predecessor entities since February 2010).

Richard Wilks BCom, CA

Director

Richard has extensive experience across a range of industries including the banking and finance sector. He recently retired from a career as a senior corporate banking professional, which included senior leadership roles with ANZ National Bank, Standard Chartered Bank and Citibank.

As at 30 June 2013, the Directors of Heartland New Zealand Limited were as follows:

Bruce Irvine	Chairman (resigned 27 August 2013)
Jeffrey Greenslade	Managing Director
Graham Kennedy	Director
Gary Leech	Director
Christopher Mace	Director
Geoff Ricketts	Director
Gregrey Tomlinson	Director

As at 30 June 2013, the gender composition of Heartland New Zealand Limited's Directors and Officers was as follows:

Positions	Female	Male
Directors	0 (0%)	7 (100%)
Officers	1 (12.5%)	7 (87.5%)



5.0 Corporate Governance

The Board and management of Heartland New Zealand Limited (the **Company**) are committed to ensuring that the Company maintains corporate governance practices in line with current best practice.

The Board has established policies and protocols which comply with the corporate governance requirements of the NZSX Listing Rules and which are consistent with the principles contained in the NZX Corporate Governance Best Practice Code.

This governance statement outlines the main corporate governance practices applied by the Company as at 30 June 2013. During the year the Board reviewed and assessed the Company's governance structure to confirm that its governance practices are consistent with best practice. The Board considers it has complied with the NZX Corporate Governance Best Practice Code for the year ended 30 June 2013.

This section of the Annual Report reflects the requirements of the New Zealand Securities Commission's Governance Principles and Guidelines. The Company's Constitution, and Board and Committee charters are available on the Company's website, www.heartland.co.nz.

Principle 1 - Ethical Standards

The Company expects its directors and staff to act honestly and in good faith, and in the best interests of the Company at all times. They must act with the care, diligence and skill expected of a director or staff member of a company that has shares that are publicly traded on the NZX Main Board and has subsidiaries that issue securities and accept funds from the general public.

Directors and staff are required to act honestly and fairly in all dealings with the Company's shareholders, customers, investors and service providers.

Each director and staff member has an obligation, at all times, to comply with the spirit as well as the letter of the law, to comply with the principles of the Company's Code of Conduct, the Directors' Code of Conduct and the Company's Constitution, and to exhibit a high standard of ethical behaviour.

The Company's Code of Conduct covers, among other things:

- receipt and use of Company assets and property
- receipt and use of Company information
- conflicts of interest

All directors and officers of the Company are required to obtain consent before buying or selling shares in the Company and to certify that their decision to buy or sell shares has not been made on the basis of inside information. The Company's Code of Conduct and Directors' Code of Conduct are available on the Company's website, www.heartland.co.nz.

Principle 2 – Board Composition and Performance

Role of the Board

The Board of Directors is responsible for corporate governance and the Company's overall direction. The Board establishes objectives, strategies and an overall policy framework within which the business is conducted. Day-to-day management is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer. The Board regularly monitors and reviews management's performance in carrying out their delegated duties.

The Board schedules monthly meetings. In the year ended 30 June 2013, the Board met 11 times.

Board Membership, Size and Composition

The NZSX Listing Rules provide that the number of directors must not be fewer than three. Subject to this limitation, the size of the Board is determined from time to time by the Board.

As at 30 June 2013, the Board comprised seven directors, being a non-executive Chairman, the Managing Director and five non-executive directors.¹

¹ With the change in board structure on 27 August 2013, the Board now comprises six directors, being a non-executive Chairman, the Managing Director and four non-executive directors.

A director is appointed by ordinary resolution of the shareholders, although the Board may fill a casual vacancy, in which case the appointed director retires at the next Annual Meeting but is eligible for re-election. Nominations for election as a director may be made by shareholders up until a closing date, which must not be more than two months before the date of the Annual Meeting.

Independence of Directors

A director is considered to be independent if that director is not an executive of the Company and if the director has no direct or indirect interest or relationship that could reasonably influence, in a material way, the director's decisions in relation to the Company.

As at 30 June 2013, the Board determined that G R Kennedy, B R Irvine, G R Leech, C R Mace and G T Ricketts were the independent directors.

Board Performance Assessment

The Board undertakes a regular review of its own, its committees' and individual directors' performance. This is to ensure it has the right composition and appropriate skills, qualifications, experience and background to effectively govern the Company and monitor the Company's performance in the interests of shareholders.

The last review was undertaken during May and June 2013.

Principle 3 – Board Committees

Board Committees

The Board has three permanently constituted committees to assist the Board by working with management in specific areas of responsibility and then reporting their findings and recommendations back to the Board. Each of these committees has terms of reference which set out the committee's objectives, membership, procedures and responsibilities. Details are available on the Company's website, www.heartland.co.nz.

Other ad hoc Board committees are established for specific purposes from time to time.

Audit Committee

As at 30 June 2013, the members of the Audit Committee were G R Leech (Chairman), B R Irvine, G R Kennedy and C Mace.²

The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in providing objective, nonexecutive review of the effectiveness of the external reporting of financial information, and the internal control environment of the Group, including obtaining an understanding of the tax and financial risks which the Company faces.

To do this, the Committee will provide oversight of:

- accounting policies and professional accounting requirements
- internal and external audit functions
- all statutory regulatory requirements
- · the internal control environment

As at 30 June 2013, the Board determined that G R Leech, B R Irvine and G R Kennedy each met the criteria for being a "financial expert" in accordance with the Audit Committee's charter.

Governance and Remuneration Committee

As at 30 June 2013, the members of the Governance and Remuneration Committee were G T Ricketts (Chairman), B R Irvine and G R Leech.³

The role of the Governance and Remuneration Committee is to:

- oversee a formal and transparent method of recommending director remuneration to shareholders
- assist the Board in establishing remuneration policies and practices for the Company and in discharging its responsibilities for reviewing

and setting the remuneration of the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Heartland New Zealand Limited and senior executives

- assist the Board in reviewing the Board's composition and the competencies required of prospective directors, identifying prospective directors, developing succession plans for the Board and making recommendations to the Board accordingly
- oversee a formal and transparent method of nominating and appointing directors to the Board
- oversee capital management in the Company, including the optimal capital structures and levels
- ensure that the Company maintains best practice corporate governance

Risk Committee

As at 30 June 2013, the members of the Risk Committee were E J Harvey (Chairman), G R Kennedy, C R Mace and R A Wilks.⁴

The Risk Committee is a committee of the Board of Heartland Bank Limited which also operates for the benefit of Heartland New Zealand Limited. The purpose of the Risk Committee is to assist the Board to:

- formulate its risk appetite, at least annually
- understand and monitor the risks faced for each of the following types of risks: credit, liquidity, market, insurance, operational, regulatory and reputational, excepting:
 - tax and financial risks which are covered by the Audit Committee
 - strategic risks are governed by the full Board with input from all committees
- ensure that all policy and decisions are made in accordance with the Group's corporate values and guiding principles

² With the change in board structure on 27 August 2013, the members of the Audit Committee are now G R Kennedy (Chairman), G R Leech and G T Ricketts.

³ With the change in company structure on 27 August 2013, the members of the Governance and Remuneration Committee are now G T Ricketts (Chairman), B R Irvine (who sits on the Committee but is not a member of the Heartland New Zealand Limited Board) and G R Tomlinson.

⁴ With the change in company structure on 27 August 2013, the members of the Risk Committee are now R A Wilks (Chairman), N J Greer, E J Harvey, G R Kennedy and C R Mace (who sits on the Committee but is not a member of the Heartland Bank Limited Board).

5.0 Corporate Governance Continued

Principle 4 – Reporting and Disclosures

The Board is committed to ensuring the highest standards are maintained in financial reporting and disclosure of all relevant information.

The Audit Committee oversees the quality and timeliness of all financial reports, including all prospectuses issued by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are required to certify to the Audit Committee that the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries present a true and fair view of the Company and comply with all relevant accounting standards.

Principle 5 – Remuneration

Total remuneration available to non-executive directors is determined by shareholders. The current aggregate approved amount is \$917,500.

Following a review in July 2013, the directors' fees were set as follows.

Board - Chair \$125,000

Directors - \$75,000

Audit Committee - Chair \$7,500

Audit Committee - Members \$7,500

Risk Committee - Chair \$20,000

Risk Committee - Members \$10,000

Governance and Remuneration Committee - Chair \$10,000

Governance and Remuneration Committee – Members \$5,000

In addition, the Chairman of Heartland Bank Limited receives \$125,000 per annum and the independent directors of Heartland Bank Limited, E J Harvey, N J Greer and R A Wilks, each receive fees of \$70,000 per annum.

The Company's policy is to pay directors' fees in cash. There is no requirement for directors to take a portion of their remuneration in shares and there is no requirement for directors to hold shares in the Company.

Senior Executive Remuneration

The objective is to provide competitive remuneration that aligns executives' remuneration with shareholder value and rewards the executives' achievement of the Company's strategies and business plans.

All senior executives receive a base salary and are also on short-term and long-term incentive plans under which they are rewarded for achieving key performance and operating results.

Principle 6 – Risk Management

The Board ensures that the Company has processes in place to identify and manage risk in the business. The three main types of risk identified are operational, business and market risks. Specific risk management strategies have been developed for each of these areas. The Risk Committee of the Board oversees the risk management strategy. The Company also has in place insurance cover for insurable liability and general business risk.

Principle 7 - Auditors

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the external, independent audit of the Company's financial statements. The Audit Committee ensures that the level of non-audit work undertaken by the auditors does not jeopardise their independence. The Company also has an internal audit function which is independent of the external auditors. The Audit Committee approves the annual audit programme, which is developed in consultation with management of the Company.

Principle 8 – Shareholder Relations

The Board is committed to maintaining a full and open dialogue with all shareholders.

6.0 Directors' Responsibility Statement

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Heartland New Zealand Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (Group) as at 30 June 2013 and the financial performance and cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2013.

The directors consider that the financial statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates and that all the relevant financial reporting and accounting standards have been followed.

The directors believe that proper accounting records have been kept which enable, with reasonable accuracy, the determination of the financial position of the Group and facilitate compliance of the financial statements with the Financial Reporting Act 1993. The Board of Directors (Board) of Heartland New Zealand Limited authorised the financial statements set out on pages 21 to 61 for issue on 26 August 2013.

For and on behalf of the Board

det

Geoffrey Ricketts Chairman

which

Jeffrey Greenslade Managing Director



7.0 Financial Statements



STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2013

		GRO	UP	COMPANY		
		Jun 13		Jun 13	Jun 12	
	NOTE	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	
Interest income	6	206,349	205,148	36	17	
Interest expense	6	110,895	121,502	-	-	
Net interest income		95,454	83,646	36	17	
Operating lease income	7	14,861	15,064	-	-	
Operating lease expenses	7	9,687	9,954	-	-	
Net operating lease income		5,174	5,110	-	-	
Lending and credit fee income		1,760	1,392	-	-	
Dividends received		-	-	15,605	1,597	
Other income	8	4,499	4,736	170	-	
Net operating income		106,887	94,884	15,811	1,614	
Selling and administration expenses	9	70,347	65,547	1,284	1,365	
Profit before impaired asset expense and income tax		36,540	29,337	14,527	249	
Impaired asset expense	10	22,527	5,642	-	-	
Decrease in fair value of investment properties	17	5,101	3,900	-	-	
Operating profit		8,912	19,795	14,527	249	
Share of equity accounted investee's profit	22	504	534	-	-	
Profit before income tax		9,416	20,329	14,527	249	
Income tax expense / (benefit)	11	2,504	(3,277)	(214)	(303)	
Profit for the year		6,912	23,606	14,741	552	
Other comprehensive income						
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:						
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of income	tax	1,056	378	-	-	
Net change in available for sale reserve, net of income tax		276	(103)	-	-	
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:						
Net change in defined benefit reserve, net of income tax		462	(435)	-	-	
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of income tax		1,794	(160)	-	-	
Total comprehensive income for the year		8,706	23,446	14,741	552	
Earnings per share from continuing operations Basic earnings per share	13	2c	6c	n/a	n/a	

All comprehensive income for the year is attributable to owners of the Group.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2013

				0	GROUP			
			Employee	Available	Defined			
		Share	Benefits	for sale	benefit	Hedging	Retained	Tota
		Capital	Reserve	Reserve	Reserve	Reserve	Earnings	Equity
	NOTE	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Balance at 1 July 2012		192,020	-	8	(421)	(1,010)	184,201	374,798
Total comprehensive income for the year								
Profit for the year		-	-	-	-	-	6,912	6,912
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax		-	-	276	462	1,056	-	1,794
Total comprehensive income for the year		-	-	276	462	1,056	6,912	8,706
Contributions by and distributions to owners								
Dividends paid	14	-	-	-	-	-	(13,591)	(13,591
Staff share ownership expense for the year		-	629	-	-	-	-	629
Total transactions with owners		-	629	-	-	-	(13,591)	(12,962
Balance at 30 June 2013		192,020	629	284	41	46	177,522	370,542
Balance at 1 July 2011		137,074	-	111	14	(1,388)	160,595	296,406
Total comprehensive income for the year								
Profit for the year		-	-	-	-	-	23,606	23,606
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax		-	-	(103)	(435)	378	-	(160
Total comprehensive income for the year		-		(103)	(435)	378	23,606	23,446
Contributions by and distributions to owners								
Capital raising proceeds	28	57,347	-	-	-	-	-	57,347
Transaction costs associated with capital raising		(1,402)	-	-	-	-	-	(1,402
Treasury shares acquired		(999)	-	-	-	-	-	(999
Total transactions with owners		54,946	-	-	-	-	-	54,946
Balance at 30 June 2012		192,020	-	8	(421)	(1,010)	184,201	374,798

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2013

				CC	OMPANY			
		Share Capital	Employee Benefits Reserve	Available for sale Reserve	Defined benefit Reserve	Hedging Reserve	Retained Earnings	Tota Equity
	NOTE	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Balance at 1 July 2012		342,288	-	-	-	-	826	343,114
Total comprehensive income for the year								
Profit for the year		-	-	-	-	-	14,741	14,741
Total comprehensive income for the year		-	-	-	-	-	14,741	14,741
Contributions by and distributions to owners								
Dividends paid	14	-	-	-	-	-	(13,605)	(13,605)
Total transactions with owners		-		-	-	-	(13,605)	(13,605)
Balance at 30 June 2013		342,288	-	-	-	-	1,962	344,250
Balance at 1 July 2011		286,343		-	-	-	274	286,617
Total comprehensive income for the year								
Profit for the year		-	-	-	-	-	552	552
Total comprehensive income for the year		-	-	-	-	-	552	552
Contributions by and distributions to owners								
Capital raising proceeds	28	57,347	-	-	-	-	-	57,347
Transaction costs associated with capital raising		(1,402)	-	-	-	-	-	(1,402)
Total transactions with owners		55,945	-	-	-	-	-	55,945
Balance at 30 June 2012		342,288	-	-	-	-	826	343,114

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2013

		GRO	OUP	COMP	ANY
		Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	NOTE	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Assets					
Cash and cash equivalents	15	174,262	89,689	1,485	469
Investments	16	165,223	24,327	-	-
Investment properties	17	58,287	55,504	-	-
Finance receivables	18	2,010,376	2,078,276	-	-
Operating lease vehicles	19	32,395	34,550	-	-
Current tax assets		-	5,635	707	363
Other assets	20	10,133	15,785	36	317
Investment in subsidiaries	21	-	-	342,234	342,343
Investment in joint venture	22	4,320	3,116	-	-
Intangible assets	23	22,963	22,997	-	-
Property, plant and equipment	24	10,281	10,067	-	-
Deferred tax assets	25	16,387	8,143	14	-
Total assets		2,504,627	2,348,089	344,476	343,492
Liabilities					
Borrowings	26	2,097,553	1,939,489	-	-
Current tax liabilities		2,859	-	-	-
Trade and other payables	27	33,673	33,802	226	378
Total liabilities		2,134,085	1,973,291	226	378
Equity					
Share capital	28	192,020	192,020	342,288	342,288
Retained earnings and reserves		178,522	182,778	1,962	826
Total equity		370,542	374,798	344,250	343,114
Total equity and liabilities		2,504,627	2,348,089	344,476	343,492

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS For the year ended 30 June 2013

	GROUF		UP	COMP	ANY
	NOTE	Jun 13 \$000	Jun 12 \$000	Jun 13 \$000	Jun 12 \$000
Cash flows from operating activities	-	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$ 000
Interest received		199,279	197,152	36	17
Dividends received			-	15,605	1,597
Operating lease income received		11,958	13,099	-	1,007
Proceeds from sale of operating lease vehicles		10,710	7,932	-	-
Lending, credit fees and other income received		6,259	6,219	- 155	-
Net decrease in finance receivables		32,908	0,219	-	
Total cash provided from operating activities		261,114	224,402	15,796	1,614
Payments to suppliers and employees		61,009	68,183	1 140	1,243
Interest paid				1,140	1,243
		112,820	121,742	-	-
Purchase of operating lease vehicles Net increase in finance receivables		15,611	16,905	-	-
		-	20,547	-	-
Taxation paid Total cash applied to operating activities		2,946 192,386	23 227,400	144 1,284	- 1,243
Net cash flows from / (applied to) operating activities	31	68,728	(2,998)	14,512	371
Cash flows from investing activities		·			
-					
Sale of investment property		3,194	832	-	-
Decrease in investment in subsidiaries		-	-	809	-
Total cash provided from investing activities		3,194	832	809	-
Purchase of office fit-out, equipment and intangible assets		2,256	3,191	-	-
Net increase in investments		130,687	6,496	-	-
Purchase of PGG Wrightson Finance Limited		-	24,898	-	-
Increase in investment in subsidiaries		-	-	700	56,000
Increase in investment in joint venture		700	-	-	-
Purchase of investment property		-	937	-	-
Total cash applied to investing activities		133,643	35,522	700	56,000
Net cash flows (applied to) / from investing activities		(130,449)	(34,690)	109	(56,000
Cash flows from financing activities					
Net increase in borrowings		159,885	-	-	-
Increase in share capital		-	57,347	-	57,347
Total cash provided from financing activities		159,885	57,347	-	57,347
Dividends paid		13,591	-	13,605	-
Purchase of treasury shares		-	999	-	-
Transaction costs associated with capital raising		-	1,402	-	1,402
Net decrease in borrowings		-	256,399	-	-
Total cash applied to financing activities		13,591	258,800	13,605	1,402
Net cash flows from / (applied to) financing activities		146,294	(201,453)	(13,605)	55,945
Net increase / (decrease) in cash held		84,573	(239,141)	1,016	316
Opening cash and cash equivalents		89,689	267,187	469	153
Cash impact of business combinations		-	61,643	-	-

For the year ended 30 June 2013

1 Reporting entity

The financial statements presented are the consolidated financial statements comprising Heartland New Zealand Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries and joint venture (Group).

The Company, through a subsidiary, owns 100% of Heartland Bank Limited (Bank). The Bank was formerly known as Heartland Building Society. Heartland Building Society was established in January 2011, as a result of the merger of Canterbury Building Society (CBS) and Southern Cross Building Society (SCBS).

The Bank owns 100% of MARAC Finance Limited (MARAC) and PGG Wrightson Finance Limited (PWF). The Company owns 100% of Heartland Financial Services Limited (HFSL) which holds a 50% joint venture interest in MARAC JV Holdings Limited (MJV) with the New Zealand Automobile Association. Refer to Note 5 - Significant subsidiaries.

The Bank acquired PWF on 31 August 2011, as a result comparatives for the year ended 30 June 2012 only include the PWF result from the date of acquisition.

The Group includes Heartland ABCP Trust 1 and CBS Warehouse A Trust (collectively the Trusts), which are special purpose vehicles holding securitised loans purchased from MARAC and the Bank.

All entities within the Group offer financial services or are special purpose entities. The Group operates and is domiciled in New Zealand. The registered office address is 75 Riccarton Road, Christchurch.

2 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in New Zealand (NZ GAAP) and with the requirements of the Financial Reporting Act 1993. They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for profit-oriented entities. The financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The Company and all entities within the Group are profit-oriented entities. The Company is a reporting entity and an issuer for the purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and its financial statements comply with that Act. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1993 and the Securities Regulations 2009.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, unless stated otherwise.

(c) Functional and presentation currency and rounding

These financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars which is the Group's functional currency. Unless otherwise indicated, amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand.

(d) Estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of management judgement, estimates and assumptions that effect reported amounts. Actual results may differ from these judgements. For further information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements that have the most significant effect on the financial statements, refer to Note 36 - Credit risk exposure.

(e) Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis after considering the Company's and Group's funding and liquidity position.

(f) Comparative information

Certain comparatives have been restated to comply with current year presentation.

3 Significant accounting policies

(a) Consolidation of subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Group. Investments in subsidiary companies are recorded at cost by the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by consolidating the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated on consolidation.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Jointly controlled entities

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions.

Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the Group using the equity method and are recognised initially at cost. The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the income and expenses and equity movements of equity accounted investees, from the date that significant influence or joint control commences until the date that significant influence or joint control ceases. Dividends received from associates and jointly controlled entities are recorded in profit or loss.

(c) Special purpose entities

Special purpose entities are created to accomplish a narrow and well-defined objective such as the securitisation or holding of particular assets, or the execution of a specific borrowing or lending transaction. The financial statements of special purpose entities are included in the Group's financial statements where the substance of the relationship is that the Company controls the special purpose entity.

(d) Interest

Interest income and expense are recognised using the effective interest method in profit or loss. The effective interest rate is established on initial recognition of the financial assets and liabilities and is not revised subsequently. The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all yield related fees and commissions paid or received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Interest on the effective portion of a derivative designated as a cash flow hedge is initially recognised in the hedging reserve. It is released to profit or loss at the same time as the hedged item or if the hedge relationship is subsequently deemed to be ineffective.

(e) Operating lease income and expense

Income from operating lease vehicles is apportioned over the term of the operating lease on a straight line basis.

Operating lease vehicles are depreciated on a straight line basis over their expected life after allowing for any residual values. The estimated lives of operating lease vehicles vary up to five years. Vehicles held for sale are not depreciated but are tested for impairment.

(f) Lending and credit fee income

Lending and credit fee income that is integral to the effective interest rate of a financial asset or liability is included in the measurement of the effective interest rate. Other lending and credit fee income is recognised as the related services are rendered.

(g) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Company's right to receive payment is established.

(h) Tax

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax for current and prior years is recognised as a liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable).

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and the amounts used for tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year(s) when the assets or liabilities giving rise to them are realised or settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group, at the reporting date, recovers or settles the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Tax (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets, including those related to the tax effects of income tax losses and credits available to be carried forward, are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses and credits can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only to the extent that they relate to income taxes imposed by the same taxation authority and there is a legal right and intention to settle on a net basis and it is allowed under tax law.

(i) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

The Group's share capital differs from the share capital of the Company as a result of the reverse acquisition accounting applied when the Company was formed. Under NZ IFRS MARAC (a subsidiary of the Company) was treated as the acquirer of the Company. As a result, the Group's result represents a continuation of the MARAC business, and the share capital of the Group reflects this.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and liquid assets used in the day to day cash management of the Group. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the Statements of Financial Position.

(k) Investments

The Group holds investments in local authority stock, public securities and corporate bonds. Investments held are classified as being available for sale and are stated at fair value less impairment, if any. The fair values are derived by reference to published price quotations in an active market or modelled using observable market inputs.

(I) Investment properties

Investment properties have been acquired through the enforcement of security over finance receivables and are held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation (or both). Investment property is initially recognised at its fair value, with subsequent changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Fair values are supported by independent valuations or other similar external evidence, adjusted for changes in market conditions and the time since the last valuation.

(m) Finance receivables

Finance receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss.

(n) Operating lease vehicles

Operating lease vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Profits on the sale of operating lease vehicles are included as part of operating lease income. Current year depreciation and losses on the sale of operating lease vehicles are included as part of operating lease expenses.

(o) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are contracts entered into to reduce the exposure to the volatility of variable rate borrowings (cash flow hedges), or to convert fixed rate borrowings or assets to variable rates (fair value hedges), in order to mitigate the Group's interest rate risk. The financial instruments are subject to the risk that market values may change subsequent to their acquisition; however such changes would be offset by corresponding, but opposite, effects on the variable rate borrowings or fixed rate borrowings or assets being hedged. Derivatives are initially valued at fair value and subsequently remeasured at fair value.

Fair value movements of derivatives that are not designated in a qualifying cash flow hedge relationship, are recognised in profit or loss. Fair value movements of the effective portion of a qualifying cash flow hedge derivative, are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and held in the hedging reserve in equity. The amount recognised in equity is transferred to profit or loss in the same year as the hedged cash flow affects profit or loss, disclosed in the same line as the hedged item. Any ineffective portion of changes in fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Fair value movements of a derivative designated as a fair value hedge are recognised directly in profit or loss together with the hedged item.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

Land and buildings are measured at fair value. Fair value is determined on the basis of independent valuations prepared by external valuation experts, based on discounted cash flows or capitalisation of net income.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land and buildings is credited to the asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised as an expense in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of land and buildings is charged as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the asset revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the asset revaluation reserve, net of any related deferred taxes, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis to write off the net cost or other revalued amount of each asset over its expected useful life to its estimated residual value.

The following annual rates are used in the calculation of depreciation:

Buildings	1.0% - 4.0%
Fixtures and fittings	5.5% - 36.0%
Office equipment and furniture	6.0% - 30.0%
Computer equipment	16.2% - 48.0%
Motor vehicles	21.0% - 25.2%

(q) Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets and contingent liabilities. When the fair value of the identifiable net assets and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of an acquisition, the resulting discount is recognised immediately in profit or loss for the year. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Computer software

Software acquired or internally developed by the Group is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic value of that asset. Amortisation of software is on a straight line basis, at rates which will write off the cost over their estimated economic lives of three to four years. All other expenditure is expensed immediately as incurred.

(r) Financial assets and liabilities

Classification

Financial assets and liabilities are classified in the following accounting categories:

Financial assets/liabilities	Accounting category
Cash and cash equivalents	Loans and receivables
Investments	Available for sale
Due from related parties	Loans and receivables
Finance receivables	Loans and receivables
Other financial assets	Loans and receivables
Borrowings	Other liabilities at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities	Other liabilities at amortised cost
Derivatives	Held for trading (or qualifying hedges as described in Note $3(o)$)

Recognition

The Group initially recognises finance receivables, borrowings and subordinated liabilities on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets and liabilities (including assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are initially recognised on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its Statements of Financial Position, but retains either all risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised from the Statements of Financial Position. Transfers of assets with the retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example, securitised assets and repurchase transactions.

(s) Impaired assets and past due assets

Impaired assets are those loans for which the Group has evidence that it will incur a loss, and will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual terms of the loan.

The term collectively impaired asset refers to an asset where an event has occurred which past history indicates that there is an increased possibility that the Group will not collect all its principal and interest as it falls due. No losses have yet been identified on these individual loans within the collectively impaired asset grouping, and history would indicate that only a small portion of these loans will eventually not be recovered. The Group provides fully for its expected losses on collectively impaired assets.

Restructured assets are impaired assets where the Group expects to recover all amounts owing although the original terms have been changed due to the counterparty's difficulty in complying with the original terms of the contract and the amended terms are not comparable with similar new lending.

Past due but not impaired assets are any assets which have not been operated by the counterparty within their key terms but are not considered to be impaired by the Group.

(t) Provision for impairment

Credit impairment provisions are made where events have occurred leading to an expectation of reduced future cash flows from certain receivables. These provisions are made in some cases against an individual loan and in other cases on a collective basis.

Bad debts provided for are written off against individual or collective provisions. Amounts required to bring the provisions to their assessed levels are recognised in profit or loss. Any future recoveries of amounts provided for are recognised in profit or loss.

Collective provisioning

Collective provisions are assessed with reference to risk profile groupings and historical loss data. Other judgemental factors including economic and credit cycle considerations are also taken into account in determining appropriate loss propensities to be applied. The future credit quality of these portfolios is subject to uncertainties that could cause actual credit losses to differ materially from reported loan impairment provisions. These uncertainties include the wider economic environment, interest rates and their effect on customer spending, unemployment levels, payment behaviour and bankruptcy rates.

No provisions are applied to loans that are newly written and loans that remain within their contractual terms, except where the Group becomes aware of an event that might alter its view of the risk of a particular deal or group of deals.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Provision for impairment (continued)

Individual provisioning

Specific impairment provisions are made where events have occurred leading to an expectation of reduced future cash flows from certain receivables. For individually significant loans for which the assessed risk grade is considered a "potential loss", an individual assessment is made of an appropriate provision for credit impairment.

Credit impairments are recognised as the difference between the carrying value of the loan and the discounted value of management's best estimate of future cash repayments and proceeds from any security held (discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate). All relevant considerations that have a bearing on the expected future cash flows are taken into account, including the business prospects for the customer, the likely realisable value of collateral, the Group's position relative to other claimants, the reliability of customer information and the likely cost and duration of the work-out process. Subjective judgements are made in this process. Furthermore, judgement can change with time as new information becomes available or as work-out strategies evolve, resulting in revisions to the impairment provision as individual decisions are taken. Changes in judgement could have a material impact on the financial statements.

Individual provisioning in regards to property development lending carries the greatest amount of risk of a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the Group's assets within the next year. Estimating the timing and amount of future cash repayments and proceeds from the realisation of collateral are management's most difficult and subjective judgements. Subjective judgements made by management comprise the time taken for new sales being achieved and the amount received, determining the timing and amount of future cash flows.

Adequacy of the collective provision levels for each risk grouping is measured against historical loss experience at least annually. Adequacy of individual provisions is assessed in respect of each loan on a material development or at least quarterly.

(u) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST. As the Group is predominantly involved in providing financial services, only a proportion of GST paid on inputs is recoverable. The non-recoverable proportion of GST is treated as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or is expensed.

(v) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

(w) Employee benefits

Annual leave entitlements are accrued at amounts expected to be paid. Long service leave is accrued by calculating the probable future value of entitlements and discounting back to present value. Obligations to defined contribution superannuation schemes are recognised as an expense when the contribution is paid.

(x) Defined benefit plan

The cost of providing benefits for defined benefit superannuation plans is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the year in which they occur by way of a movement in the defined benefit plan reserve, and are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the Statements of Changes in Equity.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average year until the benefit becomes vested. The defined benefit obligation is deducted from the fair value of the defined benefit plan asset to derive the defined benefit plan surplus recognised in trade receivables in the Statements of Financial Position.

(y) Share schemes

The Group operates share-based compensation plans that are cash settled and equity settled.

For the cash settled plan, the Group recognises a liability based on the estimated fair value of the obligation. The value of this liability is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the relevant service period and is re-measured at each reporting date.

For the equity-settled plan, share based payments to employees providing services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in Note 33 - Staff share ownership arrangements.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-bsed payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(z) Borrowings

Bank borrowings and deposits are initially recognised at fair value including incremental direct transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(aa) Statements of Cash Flows

The Statements of Cash Flows have been prepared using the direct method modified by the netting of certain cash flows associated with cash and cash equivalents, investments, related party balances, finance receivables and borrowings. Netting of cash flows provides more meaningful disclosure as many of the cash flows are received and paid on behalf of customers and reflect the activities of those customers rather than the Group.

(ab) Changes in accounting policies

There have been no material changes in accounting policies in the current year.

(ac) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2013, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. The new standards identified which may have an effect on the financial statements of the Group are:

Standard and description	Effective for annual years beginning on or after:	Expected to be initially applied in year ending:
NZ IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, which introduces a new approach to determining which investees should be consolidated and provides a single model to be applied in the control analysis for all investees.	1 January 2013	30 June 2014
NZ IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, which outlines the accounting by entities that jointly control an arrangement.	1 January 2013	30 June 2014
NZ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, which defines fair value, and establishes a framework for measuring fair value including disclosure requirements.	1 January 2013	30 June 2014
NZ IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, which contains the disclosure requirements for entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities.	1 January 2013	30 June 2014
NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which specifies how an entity should classify and measure financial assets and liabilities.	1 January 2013	30 June 2014
NZ IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements, which carries forward existing accounting and disclosure requirements for separate financial statements with minor clarifications.	1 January 2013	30 June 2014
NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, amendment to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.	1 January 2013	30 June 2014
NZ IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, which amends IFRS 5 to apply to an investment, or a portion of investment in an associate or joint venture that meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale and on cessation of significant influence or joint control, the entity does not remeasure the retained interest.	1 January 2013	30 June 2014
NZ IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, amendment to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.	1 January 2014	30 June 2015
NZ IAS 19 Employee Benefits, which requires actuarial gains and losses to be recognised immediately in other comprehensive income and the expected return on plan assets recognised in profit or loss to be calculated based on the rate used to discount the defined benefit obligation.	1 January 2013	30 June 2014

Initial application of the above standards and interpretations relevant to the Group are not expected to have any material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

4 Segmental analysis

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's operating segments which are those used for the Group's management and internal reporting structure.

All income received is from external sources, except those transactions with related parties, refer to Note 30 - Related party transactions. Certain selling and administration expenses, such as premises, IT and support centre costs are not allocated to operating segments and are included in Other.

Operating segments

The Group operates predominantly within New Zealand and comprises the following main operating segments:

Retail and Consumer	Providing a comprehensive range of financial services to New Zealand businesses and families, including term, transactional and savings based deposit accounts together with residential mortgage lending, motor vehicle finance and asset finance.
Business	Providing term debt, plant and equipment finance, commercial mortgage lending and working capital solutions for small-to-medium sized New Zealand businesses.
Rural	Providing specialist financial services to the farming sector primarily offering livestock finance, rural mortgage lending, seasonal and working capital financing, as well as leasing solutions to farmers.
Non-core Property	Funding assets of the non-core property division.

The Group's operating segments are different than the industry categories detailed in Note 37 - Asset quality. The operating segments are primarily categorised by sales channel, whereas Note 37 - Asset quality categorises exposures based on credit risk concentrations (see Note 37 - Asset quality exposure for further details).

			GRO	UP		
	Retail &			Non-core		
	Consumer	Business	Rural	Property	Other	Total
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Jun 13						
Interest income	90,991	51,679	45,762	8,734	9,183	206,349
Interest expense	46,611	26,261	22,952	7,767	7,304	110,895
Net interest income	44,380	25,418	22,810	967	1,879	95,454
Net operating lease income	5,151	23	-	-	-	5,174
Net other income	622	285	49	3,860	1,443	6,259
Net operating income	50,153	25,726	22,859	4,827	3,322	106,887
Depreciation and amortisation expense	-	-	-	-	1,940	1,940
Other selling and administration expenses	11,696	5,864	6,152	12,438	32,257	68,407
Selling and administration expenses	11,696	5,864	6,152	12,438	34,197	70,347
Profit before impaired asset expense and income tax	38,457	19,862	16,707	(7,611)	(30,875)	36,540
Impaired asset expense	2,770	3,360	(195)	16,592	-	22,527
Decrease in fair value of investment properties	-	-	-	5,101	-	5,101
Operating profit / (loss)	35,687	16,502	16,902	(29,304)	(30,875)	8,912
Share of equity accounted investee's profit	-	-	-	-	504	504
Profit / (loss) before income tax	35,687	16,502	16,902	(29,304)	(30,371)	9,416
Income tax expense	-	-	-	-	2,504	2,504
Profit / (loss) for the year	35,687	16,502	16,902	(29,304)	(32,875)	6,912
Total assets	987,796	549,177	456,647	107,438	403,569	2,504,627
Total liabilities	-	-	-	-	2,134,085	2,134,085
Total equity	-	-	-	-	370,542	370,542

For the year ended 30 June 2013

4 Segmental analysis (continued)

			GRO	UP		
	Retail &			Non-core		
	Consumer	Business	Rural	Property	Other	Total
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Jun 12						
Interest income	94,606	49,867	41,391	12,630	6,654	205,148
Interest expense	55,572	28,911	22,340	10,370	4,309	121,502
Net interest income	39,034	20,956	19,051	2,260	2,345	83,646
Net operating lease income	5,097	13	-	-	-	5,110
Net other income	927	57	66	4,104	974	6,128
Net operating income	45,058	21,026	19,117	6,364	3,319	94,884
Depreciation and amortisation expense	-	-	-	-	1,830	1,830
Other selling and administration expenses	11,475	5,273	5,837	6,350	34,782	63,717
Selling and administration expenses	11,475	5,273	5,837	6,350	36,612	65,547
Profit / (loss) before impaired asset expense and income	33.583	15,753	13,280	14	(33,293)	29,337
tax	00,000	10,100	10,200		(00,200)	20,001
Impaired asset expense	1,991	2,445	689	517	-	5,642
Decrease in fair value of investment properties	-	-	-	3,900	-	3,900
Operating profit / (loss)	31,592	13,308	12,591	(4,403)	(33,293)	19,795
Share of equity accounted investee's profit	-	-	-	-	534	534
Profit / (loss) before income tax	31,592	13,308	12,591	(4,403)	(32,759)	20,329
Income tax expense	-	-	-	-	(3,277)	(3,277)
Profit/(loss) for the year	31,592	13,308	12,591	(4,403)	(29,482)	23,606
Total assets	989,352	540,228	478,582	160,168	179,759	2,348,089
Total liabilities	-	-	-	-	1,973,291	1,973,291
Total equity	-	-	-	-	374,798	374,798

5 Significant subsidiaries and interests in jointly controlled entities

		Jun 13	Jun 12
Significant subsidiaries	Nature of business	% held	% held
Heartland Bank Limited	Financial services	100%	100%
and its subsidiaries:			
MARAC Finance Limited	Financial services	100%	100%
PGG Wrightson Finance Limited	Financial services	100%	100%
VPS Parnell Limited	Investment property holding company	100%	100%
VPS Properties Limited	Investment property holding company	100%	100%
Heartland NZ Trustee Limited	Holding company	100%	100%
Heartland Financial Services Limited	Holding company	100%	100%
and its jointly controlled entity:			
MARAC JV Holdings Limited and its subsidiary:	Holding company	50%	50%
MARAC Insurance Limited	Insurance services	50%	50%

The Group includes Heartland ABCP Trust 1, CBS Warehouse A Trust and Heartland Cash and Term PIE Fund, refer to Note 32 - Special Purpose entities for more details.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

6 Net interest income

	GRO	UP	COMP	ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Interest income				
Cash and cash equivalents	5,736	5,149	36	17
Finance receivables	197,999	199,526	-	-
Derivatives held for risk management:				
- Net interest income on cash flow hedges	2,614	473	-	-
Total interest income	206,349	205,148	36	17
Interest expense				
Retail deposits	94,198	100,769	-	-
Bank and securitised borrowings	16,697	20,733	-	-
Total interest expense	110,895	121,502	-	-
Net interest income	95,454	83,646	36	17

Included within the Group's interest income on finance receivables is \$2,591,000 (2012: \$2,674,000) on individually impaired assets.

7 Net operating lease income

	GROU	JP	COMP	ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Operating lease income				
Lease income	12,898	13,065	-	-
Gain on disposal of lease vehicles	1,963	1,999	-	-
Total operating lease income	14,861	15,064	-	-
Operating lease expense				
Depreciation on lease vehicles	9,019	9,149	-	-
Direct lease costs	668	805	-	-
Total operating lease expenses	9,687	9,954	-	-
Net operating lease income	5,174	5,110	-	-

8 Other income

		GROU	JP	COMPANY	
		Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	NOTE	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Rental income from investment properties		3,859	4,094	-	-
Management fees	30	335	328	-	-
Other income		305	314	170	-
Total other income		4,499	4,736	170	-

For the year ended 30 June 2013

9 Selling and administration expenses

		GROU	JP	COMP	ANY
		Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	NOTE	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Personnel expenses		33,448	34,186	-	-
Directors' fees		726	804	549	628
Superannuation		413	475	-	-
Audit fees		419	576	60	60
Audit related fees		104	35	-	-
Amortisation - intangible assets	23	1,226	1,075	-	-
Depreciation - property, plant and equipment	24	714	755	-	-
Operating lease expense as a lessee		1,651	1,648	-	-
RECL Agreement fees	36(e)	7,700	2,200	-	-
Legal and professional fees		3,631	3,714	246	499
Other operating expenses		20,315	20,079	429	178
Total selling and administration expenses		70,347	65,547	1,284	1,365

Audit related fees include professional fees in connection with trustee reporting, due diligence, review of prospectus documentation for various Group entities, accounting advice and review work completed.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group recognised direct operating expenses of \$3,563,000 (2012: \$2,975,000) arising from investment property that generated rental income and direct operating expenses of \$219,000 (2012: \$107,000) arising from investment property that did not generate rental income.

Included in Directors' fees are Directors' fees the Company has paid on behalf of the Bank and its subsidiaries.

10 Impaired asset expense

		GROU	JP	COMP	ANY
		Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	NOTE	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Non-securitised					
Individually impaired expense		13,098	6,920	-	-
Collectively impaired expense / (recovery)		9,108	(1,897)	-	-
Total non-securitised impaired asset expense		22,206	5,023	-	-
Securitised					
Individually impaired expense		3	1	-	-
Collectively impaired expense		318	618	-	-
Total securitised impaired asset expense		321	619	-	-
Total					
Individually impaired expense	37(e)	13,101	6,921	-	-
Collectively impaired expense / (recovery)	37(e)	9,426	(1,279)	-	-
Total impaired asset expense		22,527	5,642	-	-

The Group has changed its workout strategy with respect to non-core legacy property assets. This change has affected the periods over which assets are expected to be realised and the values expected to be realised for those assets. As a result of this change an additional provision of \$12.9 million has been raised against finance receivables in the year ended 30 June 2013.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

11 Income tax expense

	GROU	IP	COMPA	NY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Current income tax expense / (benefit)				
Current year	11,699	4,639	(300)	(303)
Adjustments for prior year	(193)	(3,218)	63	-
Deferred tax (benefit) / expense				
Origination and reversal of temporary differences	(9,002)	1,484	23	-
Tax legislation changes	-	(6,182)	-	-
Total income tax expense / (benefit)	2,504	(3,277)	(214)	(303)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate				
Profit before income tax	9,416	20,329	14,527	249
Prima facie tax at 28%	2,636	5,692	4,068	70
Plus / (less) tax effect of items not taxable / deductible	61	431	24	74
Adjustments for prior year	(193)	(3,218)	63	-
Dividends received	-	-	(4,369)	(447)
Tax legislation changes	-	(6,182)	-	-
Total income tax expense / (benefit)	2,504	(3,277)	(214)	(303)

On 29 August 2011, the Taxation (Tax Administration and Remedial Matters) Act 2011 received Royal Assent. This Act contains a retrospective legislative change in relation to mergers of building societies. The result was that \$6.2 million benefit of future tax deductions which were lost on the merger of MARAC, SCBS and CBS were made available to entities in the Heartland New Zealand Consolidated (Tax) Group, and cash that would otherwise have been required to pay tax became available to the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2012 MARAC made a subvention payment to MARAC Financial Services Limited (its former parent) for the use of tax losses to 31 May 2011. The amount paid was less than the tax rate of 30%. As a result the Group recognised a benefit of \$3.4 million included in adjustments for prior year.

(b) Tax recognised in other comprehensive income

		GROU	JP	
	Cash flow	Available	Defined	Total
	hedges	for sale	benefit	
	ir	nvestments	plan	
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Jun 2013				
Other comprehensive income before tax	1,467	383	478	2,328
less tax expense	411	107	16	534
Total other comprehensive income, net of income tax	1,056	276	462	1,794
Jun 2012				
Other comprehensive income before tax	476	(147)	(463)	(134)
less tax expense / (benefit)	98	(44)	(28)	26
Total other comprehensive income, net of income tax	378	(103)	(435)	(160)

12 Imputation credit account

As at 30 June 2013, the imputation credit account of the Group was a credit of \$1,688,000 (2012: credit of \$23,000).

For the year ended 30 June 2013

13 Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings of 2c per share at 30 June 2013 (2012: 6c per share) is based on the profit for the year of \$6,912,000 (2012: \$23,606,000), and a weighted average number of shares on issue of 388,703,975 (2012: 373,879,475).

14 Dividends paid

The Company paid dividends of \$5,830,560 on 21 December 2012 and \$7,774,079 on 5 April 2013 (2012: nil).

15 Cash and cash equivalents

	GRO	GROUP		ANY
	Jun 13 \$000	Jun 12 \$000	Jun 13 \$000	Jun 12 \$000
Cash and cash equivalents - not securitised	162,676	74,110	1,485	469
Cash and cash equivalents - securitised	11,586	15,579	-	-
Total cash and cash equivalents	174,262	89,689	1,485	469

Cash and cash equivalents are short term funds held with New Zealand registered international banks.

16 Investments

	GRO	GROUP		ANY
	Jun 13 \$000	Jun 12 \$000	Jun 13 \$000	Jun 12 \$000
Bank deposits	121,780	24,327	-	-
Public securities and corporate bonds	9,162	-	-	-
Local authority stock	34,281	-	-	-
Total investments	165,223	24,327	-	-

17 Investment properties

	GROL	GROUP		ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Opening balance	55,504	34,499	-	-
Acquisitions	10,800	23,584	-	-
Additional capital expenditure	278	2,153	-	-
Sales	(3,194)	(832)	-	-
Decrease in fair value	(5,101)	(3,900)	-	-
Closing balance	58,287	55,504	-	-

Following the unwind of the RECL Agreement (refer to Note 36(e) - Credit risk exposure for more details), the Group has acquired net investment properties during the year ended 30 June 2013 of \$11 million.

As a result of the change in the Group's workout strategy with respect to non-core legacy property assets (see Note 10 - Impaired asset expense) a \$5.1 million reduction in the fair value of investment properties has been recognised reflecting the Directors' view on the current market value of this portfolio.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

18 Finance receivables

	GRO	OUP	COMP	ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Non-securitised				
Neither at least 90 days past due or impaired	1,687,480	1,711,802	-	-
At least 90 days past due	24,837	50,508	-	-
Individually impaired	69,301	56,805	-	-
Restructured assets	3,566	9,086	-	-
Gross finance receivables	1,785,184	1,828,201	-	-
Less allowance for impairment	49,786	26,693	-	-
Total non-securitised finance receivables	1,735,398	1,801,508	-	-
Securitised				
Neither at least 90 days past due or impaired	273,922	275,985	-	-
At least 90 days past due	1,761	1,496	-	-
Individually impaired	· -	20	-	-
Restructured assets	-	-	-	-
Gross finance receivables	275,683	277,501	-	-
Less allowance for impairment	705	733	-	-
Total securitised finance receivables	274,978	276,768	-	-
Total				
Neither at least 90 days past due or impaired	1,961,402	1,987,787	-	-
At least 90 days past due	26,598	52,004	-	-
Individually impaired	69,301	56,825	-	-
Restructured assets	3,566	9,086	-	-
Gross finance receivables	2,060,867	2,105,702	-	-
Less allowance for impairment	50,491	27,426	-	-
Total finance receivables	2,010,376	2,078,276	-	-
Total finalice receivables	2,010,370	2,070,270		

Refer to Note 37 - Asset quality for further analysis of finance receivables by credit risk concentration.

19 Operating lease vehicles

	GROL	GROUP		NY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Cost				
Opening balance	51,236	47,230	-	-
Additions	15,611	16,905	-	-
Disposals	(19,508)	(12,899)	-	-
Closing balance	47,339	51,236	-	-
Accumulated depreciation				
Opening balance	16,686	14,503	-	-
Depreciation charge for the year	9,019	9,149	-	-
Disposals	(10,761)	(6,966)	-	-
Closing balance	14,944	16,686	-	-
Opening net book value	34,550	32,727	-	-
Closing net book value	32,395	34,550	-	-

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases not later than one year is \$9,412,000 (2012: \$11,123,000), within one to five years is \$8,390,000 (2012: \$7,635,000) and over five years is nil (2012: \$7,000).

For the year ended 30 June 2013

20 Other assets

		GROUP		COMPANY	
		Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	NOTE	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Derivative financial assets	29	649	2,122	-	-
Trade receivables		7,286	3,080	16	14
Due from related parties	30	-	-	20	194
Prepayments		2,198	10,583	-	109
Total other assets		10,133	15,785	36	317

21 Investment in subsidiaries

	GRO	GROUP		ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Heartland Bank Limited	-	-	338,843	338,843
Heartland Financial Services Limited	-	-	3,200	2,500
Heartland NZ Trustee Limited	-	-	191	1,000
Total investments in subsidiaries	-	-	342,234	342,343

All subsidiary companies were incorporated in New Zealand.

22 Investment in joint venture

	GROU	GROUP		COMPANY	
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12	
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	
Carrying amount at beginning of year	3,116	2,582	-	-	
Investment in joint venture	700	-	-	-	
Equity accounted earnings of joint venture	504	534	-	-	
Carrying amount at end of year	4,320	3,116	-	-	
Total assets of joint venture	9,610	6,927	-	-	
Total liabilities of joint venture	3,726	3,453	-	-	
Total income of joint venture	3,309	2,842	-	-	
Total net profit after tax of joint venture	1,010	769	-	-	

Heartland Financial Services Limited (HFSL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, owns 50% of MJV. MJV is jointly owned by HFSL and the New Zealand Automobile Association Limited.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

23 Intangible assets

	GROL	JP	COMP	ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Computer software - cost				
Opening balance	6,748	6,142	-	-
Additions	1,320	2,370	-	-
Disposals	(335)	(1,764)	-	-
Closing balance	7,733	6,748	-	-
Computer software - accumulated amortisation				
Opening balance	4,038	4,727	-	-
Amortisation charge for the year	1,226	1,075	-	-
Disposals	(335)	(1,764)	-	-
Closing balance	4,929	4,038	-	-
Computer software - opening net book value	2,710	1,415	-	-
Computer software - closing net book value	2,804	2,710	-	-
Goodwill				
Opening balance	20,287	20,187	-	-
Additions	-	100	-	-
Disposals	(128)	-	-	-
Closing balance	20,159	20,287	-	-
Total intangible assets - opening net book value	22,997	21,602	-	-
Total intangible assets - closing net book value	22,963	22,997	-	-

On 5 January 2011, 100% of each of SCBS and CBS amalgamated to form the Bank. As part of this amalgamation \$20.1 million of goodwill was recognised.

Goodwill has not been allocated to individual cash generating units, as the future economic benefit is attributable to all business units. The Group's management and Board of Directors continue to monitor goodwill at a group level.

24 Property, plant and equipment

	GROL	GROUP		ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Cost				
Opening balance	13,161	15,191	-	-
Additions	936	735	-	-
Acquired on acquisition	-	22	-	-
Disposals	(91)	(2,787)	-	-
Closing balance	14,006	13,161	-	-
Accumulated depreciation				
Opening balance	3,094	5,112	-	-
Depreciation charge for the year	714	755	-	-
Disposals	(83)	(2,773)	-	-
Closing balance	3,725	3,094	-	-
Opening net book value	10,067	10,079	-	-
Closing net book value	10,281	10,067	-	-

For the year ended 30 June 2013

25 Deferred tax

	GRO	GROUP		ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Employee entitlements	1,232	1,201	-	-
Provision for impairment	13,939	7,475	-	-
Trade and other payables	225	152	14	-
Investment properties	2,925	1,054	-	-
Intangible assets	27	-	-	-
Derivatives held for risk management	-	392	-	-
Tax assets	18,348	10,274	14	-
Property, plant and equipment	834	877	-	-
Intangible assets	-	52	-	-
Derivatives held for risk management	18	-	-	-
Operating lease vehicles	1,109	1,202	-	-
Tax liabilities	1,961	2,131	-	-
Net tax assets	16,387	8,143	14	-

All deferred tax movements are included in profit or loss except for those in respect of the available for sale and hedging reserves which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

26 Borrowings

	GRO	GROUP		NY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Deposits	1,838,619	1,625,120	-	-
Bank borrowings	-	50,010	-	-
Securitised borrowings	258,934	264,359	-	-
Total borrowings	2,097,553	1,939,489	-	-

Bank borrowings and deposits (which include NZDX bonds) rank equally and are unsecured. The Group has securitised bank facilities totalling \$500 million, all in relation to the Trusts. Heartland ABCP Trust 1 (ABCP Trust) has a securitisation facility of \$400 million maturing 5 February 2014 and CBS Warehouse A Trust (CBS Trust) has a securitisation facility of \$100 million maturing 22 January 2014. The facilities are drawn by \$259 million (2012: \$264 million) as shown above.

Investors in ABCP Trust rank equally with each other and are secured over the securitised assets of that trust. Investors in CBS Trust rank equally with each other and are secured over the securitised assets of that trust.

27 Trade and other payables

		GROU	JP	COMPA	ANY
		Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	NOTE	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Derivative financial liabilities	29	30	1,459	-	-
Trade payables		12,360	13,734	226	300
GST payable		16,249	14,014	-	-
Due to related parties	30	500	-	-	78
Employee benefits		4,534	4,595	-	-
Total trade and other payables		33,673	33,802	226	378

For the year ended 30 June 2013

28 Share capital

	COMPA	ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12
	Number of	shares
	000	000
Issued shares		
Opening balance	388,704	300,000
Shares issued during the year	-	88,704
Closing balance	388,704	388,704

The share capital above represents the share capital of the Company. This differs from the share capital reflected in the Group's Statement of Financial Position as a result of the reverse acquisition accounting. Refer to Note 3(i) for more details.

On 31 August 2011, the Company issued 23,257,528 new shares at \$0.52 per share to existing shareholders under a share purchase plan, issued 34,164,396 new shares at \$0.65 per share to underwriters of the share purchase plan, placed 4,615,385 new shares at \$0.65 per share and placed 26,666,666 new shares at \$0.75 per share to institutions and investors. The total new capital raised was \$57,346,857.

The shares have equal voting rights, rights to dividends and distributions and do not have a par value.

29 Derivative financial instruments

	GROUP		JP	COMP	ANY
		Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	NOTE	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Qualifying cash flow hedges -securitised		567	-	-	-
Qualifying fair value hedges - non-securitised		82	2,122	-	-
Total derivative financial assets	20	649	2,122	-	-
Qualifying cash flow hedges - non-securitised		-	297	-	-
Qualifying fair value hedges - securitised		-	118	-	-
Qualifying cash flow hedges - securitised		30	1,044	-	-
Total derivative financial liabilities	27	30	1,459	-	-

Derivatives consist of interest rate swaps held to manage the Group's exposure to interest rate repricing risk on its interest bearing assets and liabilities.

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge the interest rate risk arising from its commercial paper issuance and its current and future floating rate bank debt and designates those swaps as qualifying cash flow hedges. The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge the interest rate risk arising from deposits and fixed rate mortgage loans and designates these swaps as qualifying fair value hedges.

Securitised derivatives are held in the name of the Trusts to hedge the interest rate risk arising in the Trusts.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

30 Related party transactions

The Company holds all shares in the Bank, HFSL, MARAC and PWF, refer Note 5 - Significant subsidiaries and interests in jointly controlled entities.

(a) Transactions with related parties

MARAC provided administrative assistance to MARAC Insurance Limited and received insurance commission from MARAC Insurance Limited.

MARAC Insurance Limited and some key management personnel invested in the Bank's deposits. The investments of Heartland Cash and Term PIE Fund are detailed in Note 32 - Special purpose entities. Key management personnel investments are detailed in Note 30(b).

	GROU	JP	COMPANY	
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Transactions with related parties				
Dividend income from subsidiaries	-	-	15,605	1,597
Lending and credit fee income	312	368	-	-
Other income	335	328	-	-
Total transactions with other related parties	647	696	15,605	1,597
Due from related parties				
Subsidiaries	-	-	20	194
Total due from related parties	-	-	20	194
Due to related parties				
Subsidiaries	-	-	-	78
MARAC Insurance Limited	500	-	-	-
Total due to related parties	500	-	-	78

(b) Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel, being directors of the Company and those staff reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer and their immediate relatives, have transacted with the Group during the year as follows:

	GRO	UP	COMP	ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Deposit investments by key management personnel:				
Closing balance	825	468	-	-
Loans to key management personnel:				
Closing balance	-	304	-	-
Key management personnel interest expense and compensation is as follows:				
Interest expense	28	21	-	-
Short-term employee benefits	5,933	5,118	549	628
Share-based payments	718	459	-	-
Total	6,679	5,598	549	628

For the year ended 30 June 2013

31 Reconciliation of profit after tax to net cash flows from operating activities

	GROU	JP	COMPA	NY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Profit for the year	6,912	23,606	14,741	552
Add / (less) non-cash items:				
Depreciation and amortisation expense	1,940	1,830	-	-
Change in fair value of investment properties	5,101	3,900	-	-
Impaired asset expense	22,527	5,642	-	-
Deferred tax benefit	(8,244)	(2,978)	(14)	-
Derivative financial instruments revaluation	1,100	(219)	-	-
Accruals	(836)	529	-	-
Total non-cash items	21,588	8,704	(14)	-
Add / (less) movements in working capital items:				
Other assets	6,022	2,239	267	(271)
Current tax	8,494	(6,785)	(344)	(109)
Other liabilities	(2,337)	154	(138)	199
Total movements in working capital items	12,179	(4,392)	(215)	(181)
Net cash flows from operating activities before movements in finance receivables				
and operating lease vehicles	40,679	27,918	14,512	371
Movement in operating lease vehicles	2,155	(1,823)	-	-
Movement in finance receivables	25,894	(29,093)	-	-
Net cash flows from operating activities	68,728	(2,998)	14,512	371

32 Special purpose entities

Heartland Cash and Term PIE Fund (PIE Fund)

The Group controls the operations of the PIE Fund, a portfolio investment entity that invests in the Group's deposits. Investments of the PIE Fund are represented as follows:

	GROU	GROUP		ANY
	Jun 13 \$000	Jun 12 \$000	Jun 13 \$000	Jun 12 \$000
Deposits	33,226	12,347	-	-

Heartland ABCP Trust 1 and CBS Warehouse A Trust

The Group has securitised a pool of receivables comprising residential, commercial, and motor vehicle loans to the Trusts. The Group substantially retains the credit risks and rewards associated with the securitised assets, and continues to recognise these assets and associated borrowings on the Statements of Financial Position. Despite this presentation in the financial statements, the loans sold to the Trusts are set aside for the benefit of investors in the Trusts and are represented as follows:

	GRO	UP	COMPANY	
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Cash and cash equivalents - securitised	11,586	15,579	-	-
Finance receivables - securitised	274,978	276,768	-	-
Borrowings - securitised	(258,934)	(264,359)	-	-
Derivative financial asset - securitised	567	-	-	-
Derivative financial liabilities - securitised	(30)	(1,162)	-	-

For the year ended 30 June 2013

33 Staff share ownership arrangements

Heartland Long Term Executive Share Plan

The Heartland Long Term Executive Share Plan (the LTESP) was introduced in the year ended 30 June 2013 for selected executives and senior employees of the Bank. Under the LTESP, the Banking Group lent funds to the participants. These funds were used by the participants to acquire shares of HNZ. The HNZ shares acquired by participants are held on their behalf by Heartland NZ Trustee Limited, an HNZ subsidiary. If a participant is still employed by the Banking Group on 30 June 2014, that participant may be entitled to some or all of the HNZ shares held on their behalf. The number of HNZ shares to which a participant will be entitled is determined by performance hurdles relating to the period which commenced 1 July 2011 (which include corporate values targets and financial performance targets). To the extent a participant is entitled to HNZ shares held on their behalf, the participant is given a cash bonus which is applied toward repayment of the loan. To the extent a participant is not entitled to HNZ shares held on their behalf, those shares are acquired by Heartland NZ Trustee Limited for a purchase price which is applied toward repayment of the loan. The weighted average grant date fair value of the shares issued under the LTESP was \$0.60 (based on the volume weighted average price of the shares for the 20 business days immediately preceding the grant date).

Information regarding the shares under the LTESP is as follows:

	GROL	JP	COMPANY	
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	Shares	Shares	Shares	Shares
	000	000	000	000
Opening unvested shares	-	-	-	-
Number of shares granted	1,607	-	-	-
Less: forfeited over life of scheme	(35)	-	-	-
Less: vested over life of scheme	-	-	-	-
Closing unvested shares	1,572	-	-	-
	GROL	JP	COMPA	ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Total amount recognised as an expense	459	480	-	-

Heartland LTI Cash Entitlements Plan

The Heartland LTI Cash Entitlements Plan (LTICEP) was introduced for selected executives of the Bank. Under the LTICEP, participants are granted a cash entitlement. This cash entitlement is based on the amount by which the market price of HNZ shares at a future date exceeds an agreed reference price (no payment is made in the event that the market price of HNZ shares at that future date is lower than the reference price). Cash entitlements based on a reference pool of 5.65 million shares were issued in the year ending 30 June 2013 at a reference price of \$0.72 per share.

Any cash entitlements are payable on the earlier of 20 business days after the release of the HNZ's financial results for the year ended 30 June 2015, or 2 November 2015. The market price of HNZ shares at this date will be based on the volume weighted average price for the 20 business days prior to this date.

Compensation expense is recognised over the service period, being the period from the date the instrument is granted until the expiry date. Grant date was 23 November 2012. Information regarding the entitlements under the LTICEP is as follows:

	GROU	JP	COMP	ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Total amount recognised as an expense	350	-	-	-
Liability recognised for bonus payable	350	-	-	-
The assumptions utilised in the modal are as follows:				
Volatility (%)	30%			
Risk free interest rate (%)	3%			

Risk free interest rate (%)	3%	
Annual dividends per share (cents)	4.1	
Expiry date	30/06/2015	
Exercise price (\$)	0.72	
Market price (\$)	0.83	

For the year ended 30 June 2013

34 Fair value

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial asset and liability.

Finance receivables

The fair value of the Group's finance receivables is calculated using a valuation technique which assumes current market interest rates for loans of a similar nature and term.

The current average market rate used to fair value finance receivables with a fixed interest rate was 8.58% (2012: 9.06%). Finance receivables with a floating interest rate are deemed to be at current market rates. The current amount of credit provisioning has been deducted from the fair value calculation of finance receivables as a proxy for future losses. Prepayment rates have not been factored into the fair value calculation as they are not deemed to be material.

Investments

Investments in public sector securities and corporate bonds are classified as being available for sale and are stated at fair value less impairment, with the fair value being based on quoted market prices (Level 1 under the fair value hierarchy) or modelled using observable market inputs (Level 2 under the fair value hierarchy).

Other financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered equivalent to their carrying value due to their short term nature.

Derivative items

The fair value of interest rate contracts is modelled using observable market inputs (Level 2 under the fair value hierarchy).

Borrowings

The fair value of deposits, bank borrowings and other borrowings is the present value of future cash flows and is based on the current market interest rates payable by the Group for debt of similar maturities.

			GRO	DUP		
		Loans and receivables	Available for sale	Financial liabilities at amortised cost	Total Carrying Value	Total Fair Value
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
June 13						
Cash and cash equivalents	-	174,262	-	-	174,262	174,262
Investments	-	-	165,223	-	165,223	165,223
Finance receivables	-	1,735,398	-	-	1,735,398	1,734,792
Finance receivables - securitised	-	274,978	-	-	274,978	278,540
Derivative financial assets	649	-	-	-	649	649
Other financial assets	-	7,286	-	-	7,286	7,286
Total financial assets	649	2,191,924	165,223	-	2,357,796	2,360,752
Borrowings	-	-	-	1,838,619	1,838,619	1,841,657
Borrowings - securitised	-	-	-	258,934	258,934	258,934
Derivative financial liabilities	30	-	-	-	30	30
Other financial liabilities	-	-	-	17,394	17,394	17,394
Total financial liabilities	30	-	-	2,114,947	2,114,977	2,118,015
June 12						
Cash and cash equivalents	-	89,689	-	-	89,689	89,689
Investments	-	-	24,327	-	24,327	24,327
Finance receivables	-	1,801,508	-	-	1,801,508	1,800,616
Finance receivables - securitised	-	276,768	-	-	276,768	281,104
Derivative financial assets	2,122	-	-	-	2,122	2,122
Other financial assets	-	3,080	-	-	3,080	3,080
Total financial assets	2,122	2,171,045	24,327	-	2,197,494	2,200,938
Borrowings	-	-	-	1,675,130	1,675,130	1,681,134
Borrowings - securitised	-	-	-	264,359	264,359	264,359
Derivative financial liabilities	1,459	-	-	-	1,459	1,459
Other financial liabilities	-	-	-	18,329	18,329	18,329
Total financial liabilities	1,459	-	-	1,957,818	1,959,277	1,965,281

For the year ended 30 June 2013

34 Fair value (continued)

			COM	PANY		
		Loans and receivables	Available for sale	Financial liabilities at amortised cost	Total Carrying Value	Total Fair Value
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
June 13						
Cash and cash equivalents	-	1,485	-	-	1,485	1,485
Other financial assets	-	36	-	-	36	36
Total financial assets	-	1,521	-	-	1,521	1,521
Other financial liabilities	-	-	-	226	226	226
Total financial liabilities	-	-		226	226	226
June 12						
Cash and cash equivalents	-	469	-	-	469	469
Other financial assets	-	194	-	-	194	194
Total financial assets	-	663	-	-	663	663
Other financial liabilities	-	-	-	300	300	300
Total financial liabilities	-	-	-	300	300	300

35 Risk management policies

The Group is committed to the management of risk. The primary risk categories are credit, liquidity, market (including interest rate), operational and compliance. The Group's risk management strategy is set by the Board of Directors (Board). The Group has put in place management structures and information systems to manage risks incorporated in the Group's Risk Management Programme (RMP). The Group has separate monitoring tasks where feasible and subjects all risk processes to hindsight and internal audit, and accounting systems to regular internal and external audits.

Role of the Board and the Risk Committee

The Board, through its Board Risk Committee (BRC) is responsible for the overall risk management process and the development of the RMP. The role of the BRC is to assist the Board to formulate its risk appetite, understand the risks the Group faces for each strategic, credit, liquidity, market (including interest rate), legal and governance, financial and tax, operational and capital adequacy risk and to ensure that all policy and decisions are made in accordance with the Group's corporate values and guiding principles. The BRC has the following responsibilities:

- To oversee the Group's risk profile and review and approve the Group's Risk Management Framework within the context of the risk-reward strategy determined by the Board at least annually.
- To make recommendations regarding high-level liquidity / capital / funding policies and strategy, including the use of securitisation and special investment vehicles.
- To agree and recommend for Board approval and annual review; a set of risk limits and conditions that apply to the taking of risk, as delegated to the Risk Committee by the Board, that are consistent with the Board's determined risk appetite. This includes the authorities delegated by the Board to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Chief Risk Officer (CRO) and any other officers of the Bank to whom the Board or the Committee have delegated authority, and to consider and accept risks beyond management's approval discretion where deemed appropriate.
- To monitor the risk profile, performance, capital levels, exposures against limits and the management and control of the Group's risks.
- To review significant correspondence with the Group's regulators, and receive reports from management on the Group's regulatory relations and report any significant issues to the Board.
- To monitor changes anticipated in the economic and business environment and other factors considered relevant to the Group's risk profile and capital adequacy.
- To review significant risk management issues that are raised in external or internal audits as well as the length of time and action taken to resolve such issues.
- To ensure an appropriate set of applicable corporate governance principles are developed, and reviewed on a regular basis.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

35 Risk management policies (continued)

The BRC consists of four directors, of which at least three are non-executive directors and two are independent directors. In addition the CEO, CRO and CFO are in attendance at meetings. The BRC meets at least bi-monthly to review identified risk issues, and reports directly to the Board. A member of the BRC sits on the Audit Committee and vice versa.

Audit Committee and Internal Audit

The Group has an internal audit function, the objective of which is to provide independent, objective assurance over the internal control environment and additional services designed to add value and improve the Group's operations. It assists the Group to accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes. Internal audit is granted full, free and unfettered access to any and all of the organisation's records, personnel and physical properties deemed necessary to accomplish its internal audit activities.

A regular cycle of testing has been implemented to cover all areas of the business. Its focus is on assessment, management and control of risks. The intention is to cycle through various business units and operational areas on a pre-set and agreed cycle relative to assessed risk, looking at the specific internal control issues pertinent to the area, with a requirement to meet or exceed the Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing of The Institute of Internal Auditors.

Each audit has a separate audit programme tailored to the area of business that is being reviewed. The audit programmes are updated during each audit to reflect any process changes. Audit work papers are completed to evidence the testing performed in accordance with the audit programme.

All internal audit reports are addressed to the manager of the relevant area that is being audited. Management comments are obtained from the process owner(s) and are included in the report.

The internal audit function has direct reporting lines, and accountability to the Audit Committee of the Bank and administratively to the CFO. A schedule of all outstanding internal control issues is maintained and presented to the Audit Committee to assist the Audit Committee to track the resolution of previously identified issues. Any issues raised that are categorised as high risk are specifically reviewed by internal audit during a follow-up review once the issue is considered closed by management. The follow-up review is performed with a view to formally close out the issue.

The Audit Committee focuses on financial reporting and application of accounting policies as part of the internal control and risk assessment framework. The Audit Committee monitors the identification, evaluation and management of all significant risks through the Group. This work is supported by internal audit, which provides an independent assessment of the design, adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls. The Audit Committee receives regular reports from internal audit.

Charters for the Risk and Audit Committee ensure suitable cross representation to allow effective communication pertaining to identified issues with oversight by the Board. The CRO has a direct reporting line to the Chairman of the Board. The Head of Internal Audit has a direct reporting line to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO)

The ALCO comprises the CEO (Chair), CFO, CRO, Head of Treasury & Strategy, Treasurer, Head of Consumer & Retail and Head of Business & Rural. The ALCO has responsibility for overseeing aspects of the Bank's financial position risk management. The purpose of the ALCO is to support the BRC with specific responsibilities for decision making and oversight of risk matters in relation to:

- Balance sheet structure;
- Non-traded interest rate risk (including the investment of capital);
- Liquidity and funding; and
- Capital management.

The ALCO usually meet monthly, and reports to the BRC.

Executive Risk Committee (ERC)

The ERC comprises the CEO (Chair), CFO, CRO, Chief Operating Officer, Head of Treasury & Strategy, Head of Consumer & Retail and Head of Business & Rural, Head of Human Resources and Group General Counsel. The ERC has responsibility for overseeing all risk aspects not considered by ALCO. The purpose of ERC is to support the BRC with specific responsibilities for decision making and oversight of risk matters in relation to:

- Operational and compliance risk
- Credit risk
- Strategic risk
- Legal and governance risk
- Financial and tax risk

For the year ended 30 June 2013

35 Risk management policies (continued)

Specific areas of risk management

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from the non-performance of a counterparty to an instrument or facility. Credit risk arises when funds are extended, committed, invested or otherwise exposed through contractual arrangements, and encompasses both on and off balance sheet instruments.

Credit risk is managed to achieve sustainable and superior risk-reward performance whilst maintaining exposures within acceptable risk "appetite" parameters. This is achieved through the combination of governance, policies, systems and controls, underpinned by sound commercial judgement as described below.

To manage this risk the BRC has been delegated the task of overseeing a formal credit risk management strategy. The BRC reviews the Group's credit risk exposures to ensure consistency with the Group's credit policies to manage all aspects of credit risk. The credit risk management strategies ensure that:

- Credit origination meets agreed levels of credit quality at point of approval.
- Sector and geographical risks are actively managed.
- Industry concentrations are actively monitored.
- Maximum total exposure to any one debtor is actively managed.
- Changes to credit risk are actively monitored with regular credit reviews.

The Group has adopted a detailed Credit Policy Framework supported by Lending Standards providing criteria for finance products within each business sector. The combination of the Credit Policy Framework and Lending Standards guides credit assessment, credit risk grading, documentation standards, legal procedures and compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements.

The Risk Committee has authority from the Board for approval of all credit exposures. Lending authority has been individually provided to the Chief Risk Officer, for delegation through the business units under a detailed Delegated Lending Authority framework. Application of credit discretions in the business operation are monitored through a defined review and hindsight structure. Delegated Lending Authorities are provided to individual officers with due cognisance of their experience and ability. Larger and higher risk exposures require approval of senior management, the credit risk committee and ultimately through to the CRO or the BRC.

Although the Group relies primarily on the integrity of borrowers and their ability to make contracted repayments, the Group also requires appropriate collateral for loans. This collateral is usually by way of first charge over the asset financed and usually includes personal guarantees from borrowers and business owners. Because of the wide nature of the collateral held against loans it is impractical to provide an accurate estimate of their fair value.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is governed by a policy approved by the Board and managed by the ERC. This policy sets out the nature of risk which may be taken and aggregate risk limits, and the ERC must conform to this. The objective of the ERC is to manage the best risk return result from lending activities and avoid risk at a transactional and portfolio level inconsistent with the Groups risk appetite.

In addition to regular internal audit activity in regards to credit standards, the Group employs a comprehensive process of hind sighting loans to ensure that credit policies and the quality of credit processes are maintained.

Market risk

The Group's market risk arises primarily due to significant exposure to interest rate risk, predominantly from raising funds through the retail and wholesale deposit market, the debt capital markets and committed and uncommitted bank funding, securitisation of receivables, and offering loan finance products to the commercial and consumer market in New Zealand.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of assets or liabilities will change because of changes in interest rates or that market interest rates may change and thus alter the margin between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Interest rate risk for the Group refers to the risk of loss due to holding assets and liabilities that may mature or re-price in different periods.

The Group's exposure to market risk is governed by a policy approved by the Board and managed by the ALCO. This policy sets out the nature of risk which may be taken and aggregate risk limits, and the ALCO must conform to this. The objective of the ALCO is to derive the most appropriate strategy for the Group in terms of the mix of assets and liabilities given its expectations of the future and the potential consequences of interest rate movements, liquidity constraints and capital adequacy.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

35 Risk management policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

To manage this market risk, the Group measures sensitivity to interest rate changes by frequently testing its position against various interest rate change scenarios to assess potential risk exposure. The Group also manages interest rate risk by:

- Monitoring maturity profiles and seeking to match the re-pricing of assets and liabilities (physical hedging);
- Monitoring interest rates daily and regularly (at least monthly) reviewing interest rate exposure; and
- Entering into forward rate agreements and interest rate swaps and options to hedge against movements in interest rates.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that under certain conditions, cash outflows can exceed cash inflows in a given period. The Group maintains sufficient liquid funds to meet its commitments based on historical and budgeted cash flow forecasts. Management of liquidity risk is achieved by maintaining a prudent level of liquid assets, utilisation of securitisation vehicles and management control of the growth of the business.

The Group's liquidity risks are governed by a Board approved liquidity strategy that defines policy, systems and procedures for measuring, assessing, reporting and managing liquidity. This also includes a formal contingency plan for dealing with a liquidity crisis.

The Group's exposure to liquidity risk is governed by a policy approved by the Board and managed by the ALCO. This policy sets out the nature of risk which may be taken and aggregate risk limits, and the ALCO must conform to this. The objective of the ALCO is to derive the most appropriate strategy for the Group in terms of the mix of assets and liabilities given its expectations of future cash flows, liquidity constraints and capital adequacy.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk arising from day to day operational activities which may result in direct or indirect loss. Operational risk losses can occur as a result of fraud, human error, missing or inadequately designed processes, failed systems, damage to physical assets, improper behaviour or from external events. The losses range from direct financial losses, to reputational damage, unfavourable media attention, or loss of staff or clients. Examples include failure to comply with policy and legislation, human error, natural disasters, fraud and other malicious acts. Where appropriate, risks are mitigated by insurance.

To ensure appropriate responsibility is allocated for the management, reporting and escalation of operational risk, the Group operates a "three lines of defence" model which outlines principles for the roles, responsibilities and accountabilities for operational risk management:

- The first line of defence is the business line management for the identification, management and mitigation of the risks associated with the products and processes of the business. This accountability includes regular testing and certification of the adequacy and effectiveness of controls and compliance with the Group's policies.
- The second line of defence is the Risk & Compliance function, responsible for the design and ownership of the Operational Risk Policies. It incorporates key processes including risk and control assessment, scenario analysis, loss data collection, new product approval process, key risk indicators, notifiable events process, and the self-certification process.
- The third line of defence is audit. Internal Audit is responsible for assessing compliance with policy frameworks and for providing independent evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk and control framework.

The Group's exposure to Operational risk is governed by a policy approved by the Board and managed by the ERC. This policy sets out the nature of risk which may be taken and aggregate risk limits, and the ERC must conform to this. The objective of the ERC is to manage the identification of risk and maintenance of a suitable control environment so residual risk to the Group is consistent with the Groups risk appetite.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

36 Credit risk exposure

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk at the relevant reporting dates

The following table represents the maximum credit risk exposure, without taking account of any collateral held. The exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the Statements of Financial Position.

	GRO	OUP	COMPA	ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Cash and cash equivalents	174,262	89,689	1,485	469
Investments	165,223	24,327	-	-
Finance receivables	2,010,376	2,078,276	-	-
Derivative financial assets	649	2,122	-	-
Other financial assets	7,286	3,080	36	208
Total on balance sheet credit exposures	2,357,796	2,197,494	1,521	677

(b) Concentration of credit risk by geographic region

	GRC	DUP	COMPA	NY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Auckland	706,137	653,517	1,501	483
Wellington	217,928	120,469	-	-
Rest of North Island	548,046	482,342	-	-
Canterbury	531,871	584,086	-	-
Rest of South Island	369,775	365,112	-	-
	2,373,757	2,205,526	1,501	483
Provision for collectively impaired assets	(15,961)	(8,032)	-	-
Due from related parties	-	-	20	194
Total on balance sheet credit exposures	2,357,796	2,197,494	1,521	677
Concentration of credit risk by industry sector				
Agriculture	499,942	530,440	-	-
Forestry and Fishing	29,565	35,698	-	-
Mining	19,044	14,325	-	-
Manufacturing	79,915	56,304	-	-
Finance & Insurance	348,166	134,630	1,501	483
Wholesale trade	76,816	38,669	-	-
Retail trade	155,962	144,608	-	-
Households	629,854	678,508	-	-
Property and Business services	320,198	297,944	-	-
Transport and storage	25,267	57,709	-	-
Other Services	189,028	216,691	-	-
	2,373,757	2,205,526	1,501	483
Provision for collectively impaired assets	(15,961)	(8,032)	-	-
Due from related parties	-	-	20	194
Total on balance sheet credit exposures	2,357,796	2,197,494	1,521	677
Commitments to extend credit				
Undrawn facilities available to customers	106,702	125,492	-	-
Conditional commitments to fund at future dates	48,428	38,796	-	-

As at 30 June 2013 there are no undrawn lending commitments to counterparties for whom drawn balances are classified as individually impaired (2012: nil).

For the year ended 30 June 2013

36 Credit risk exposure (continued)

(e) Real Estate Credit Limited Management agreement (RECL Agreement)

MARAC entered into the RECL agreement on 5 January 2011. Under this arrangement, Real Estate Credit Limited (RECL) managed certain non-core real estate loans of MARAC for a 5 year period ending 5 January 2016, and assumed the risk of loss on those loans for that period. The payment obligations of RECL were "limited in recourse" to a pool of security provided by RECL. This pool of security included an \$11 million 5 year zero coupon bond (issued by Westpac New Zealand Limited which is rated AA- by Standard & Poor's (Australia) Pty Limited), and other assets (initially real estate or real estate loans) with a required minimum security value of (initially) \$19 million.

MARAC paid RECL an upfront fee of \$11 million (which was being amortised over the 5 year period of the arrangement), and paid an ongoing management fee of \$200,000 per annum.

On 4 June 2013 the RECL Agreement was terminated and RECL transferred to MARAC the assets charged to secure the compensation payment.

As a result of the RECL Agreement being terminated, the unamortised portion of the upfront fee paid to RECL has been written off. This write off is reflected in the Group's result for the year ended 30 June 2013, refer to Note 9 - Selling and administration expenses. The amount written off was \$6.1 million.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the benefit of the RECL agreement was included in the determination of the charge and the analysis of risk gradings and the classification of individually impaired assets, refer to Note 37 - Asset quality.

(f) PGG Wrightson Finance Limited guaranteed loans

On 31 August 2011, Heartland acquired 100% of PGG Wrightson Finance Limited from PGG Wrightson Limited (PGW). As part of the acquisition, the Bank and PGW entered into a Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity in relation to certain loans (the Recourse Loans), with book value on acquisition of \$30.6 million. This arrangement provides Heartland with a guarantee from PGW in relation to the future payment of principal and interest on the Recourse Loans for a prescribed period of three years. As at 30 June 2013, total recourse loans of \$5.7 million were included in the Banking Group's finance receivables (2012: \$28.9 million).

For the year ended 30 June 2013

37 Asset quality

The disclosures in this note are categorised by the following credit risk concentrations:

Corporate	
Rural	Lending to the farming sector primarily livestock, rural mortgage lending, seasonal and working capital financing,
	as well as leasing solutions to farmers. Includes lending to individuals and small to medium enterprises.
Non-core Property	Property asset lending including non-core property.
Other	All other lending that does not fall into another category.
Residential	Lending secured by a first ranking mortgage over a residential property used primarily for residential purposes either by the mortgagor or a tenant of the mortgagor.
All Other	Consumer lending to individuals.

(a) Finance receivables by credit risk concentration

				GRO	OUP		
			Corporate		Desidential	All Other	Total
		Rural	Property	Other	Residential	All Other	Total
	NOTE	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Jun 13							
Neither at least 90 days past due or impaired		522,815	17,866	797,195	230,283	393,243	1,961,402
At least 90 days past due	37(b)	3,975	11,045	7,584	814	3,180	26,598
Individually impaired	37(c)	2,979	61,634	4,688	-	-	69,301
Restructured assets		6	-	1,225	-	2,335	3,566
Provision for impairment	37(e)	(1,706)	(41,512)	(5,632)	(134)	(1,507)	(50,491)
Total net finance receivables		528,069	49,033	805,060	230,963	397,251	2,010,376
Jun 12							
Neither at least 90 days past due or impaired		552,740	50,202	713,550	322,243	349,052	1,987,787
At least 90 days past due	37(b)	13,014	27,167	8,945	15	2,863	52,004
Individually impaired	37(c)	1,060	50,860	2,275	2,630	-	56,825
Restructured assets		19	5,522	1,145	-	2,400	9,086
Provision for impairment	37(e)	(2,519)	(17,877)	(4,401)	(774)	(1,855)	(27,426)
Total net finance receivables		564,314	115,874	721,514	324,114	352,460	2,078,276

(b) Past due but not impaired

			GR	OUP		
	Corporate			Residential	All Other	Total
	Rural	Property	Other	Residential	All Other	TOLAI
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Jun 13						
Less than 30 days past due	7,510	179	6,050	1,909	8,675	24,323
At least 30 and less than 60 days past due	1,390	-	3,457	690	2,371	7,908
At least 60 but less than 90 days past due	143	127	3,263	200	1,434	5,167
At least 90 days past due	3,975	11,045	7,584	814	3,180	26,598
Total past due but not impaired	13,018	11,351	20,354	3,613	15,660	63,996
Jun 12						
Less than 30 days past due	5,295	365	9,724	1,658	6,696	23,738
At least 30 and less than 60 days past due	2,427	139	4,492	722	2,529	10,309
At least 60 but less than 90 days past due	2,544	3,455	1,401	251	1,208	8,859
At least 90 days past due	13,014	27,167	8,945	15	2,863	52,004
Total past due but not impaired	23,280	31,126	24,562	2,646	13,296	94,910

For the year ended 30 June 2013

37 Asset quality (continued)

(c) Individually impaired assets

			GRO	OUP		
		Corporate		Residential	All Other	Total
	Rural	Property	Other	Residential	All Other	Total
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Jun 13						
Opening	1,060	50,860	2,275	2,630	-	56,825
Additions	2,980	30,938	5,631	133	-	39,682
Deletions	(795)	(16,740)	(1,160)	(1,832)	-	(20,527)
Write offs	(266)	(3,424)	(2,058)	(931)	-	(6,679)
Closing gross individually impaired assets	2,979	61,634	4,688	-	-	69,301
Less: provision for individually impairment assets	1,125	31,252	2,153	-	-	34,530
Total net impaired assets	1,854	30,382	2,535	-	-	34,771
Jun 12						
Opening	195	51,853	16,489	-	-	68,537
Additions	2,589	30,070	5,056	2,661	-	40,376
Deletions	(1,837)	(24,359)	(13,096)	(31)	-	(39,323)
Assumed on acquisition	1,871	-	-	-	-	1,871
Write offs	(1,758)	(6,704)	(6,174)	-	-	(14,636)
Closing gross individually impaired assets	1,060	50,860	2,275	2,630	-	56,825
Less: provision for individually impairment assets	696	16,917	1,086	695	-	19,394
Total net impaired assets	364	33,943	1,189	1,935	-	37,431

(d) Credit risk grading

The Group's receivables are monitored either by account behaviour or a regular assessment of their credit risk grade based on an objective review of defined risk characteristics. The portfolio risk is regularly refreshed based on current information.

The Group classifies finance receivables as Behavioural or Judgement.

The Behavioural portfolio consists mainly of consumer and retail receivables and usually relates to financing the acquisition of a single asset. Consumer loans are typically introduced by vendors of the asset financed and are smaller in value than Judgement loans. Behavioural loans are risk graded based on arrears status.

Behavioural loans are classified as either not in arrears, active, arrangement, non-performing / repossession or recovery, as described below:

- Active loans for which the arrears category has reached 5 days overdue.
- Arrangement 5 to 34 days overdue accounts for which arrangements have or are in the process of being made for arrears to be repaid.
 Non-performing / Repossession residential mortgage loans that are greater than 90 days past due / other loans for which security has
- or is in the process of being repossessed.
 Recovery loans loans for which security has been sold and shortfalls are being sought from the customer or where other recovery action is being taken.

The Judgement portfolio consists mainly of business and rural lending and includes non-core property. Judgement loans relate to loans where an ongoing and detailed working relationship with the customer has been developed.

Judgement loans are individually risk graded based on loan status, financial information, security and debt servicing ability. Exposures in the Judgement portfolio are credit risk graded by an internal risk grading mechanism.

In the Judgement portfolio, grade 1 is the strongest risk grade for undoubted risk and grade 9 represents the highest risk grade where a loss is probable. Grade 10 reflects loss accounts written off. Grades 2 to 8 represent ascending steps in management's assessment of risk of exposures. The Group typically finances new loans in risk grades 2 to 5 of the Judgement portfolio.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

37 Asset quality (continued)

(d) Credit risk grading (continued)

Rural Property Other 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 Jut 13 Jutgement portfolio - - - Grade 1 - Very Strong 575 - - - - Grade 2 - Strong 6.689 - 8.877 4.1 - - Grade 3 - Sound 17,050 - 64,242 2.300 - - Grade 4 - Adequate * 106,467 - 153,848 4.671 - 1 Grade 6 - Monitor 122,876 12.297 60,560 2.637 - - Grade 8 - Actisk foloss 1,850 24,093 1.818 - - Total Judgement portfolio 295,838 59,233 483,641 29,759 - 1,0 Behavioural portfolio 196,545 381,730 9 - 1,319 Not nerrears 32,565 - 318,094 196,545 381,730 9 Active 197 -		GROUP							
Rural Property Other 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 Jun 13 Judgment portfolio 575 - - - - Grade 1 - Kry Strong 6,689 - 8,877 41 - - Grade 3 - Sound 17,050 - 64,242 2,320 - - Grade 5 - Acceptable 234,912 1,979 181,851 19,326 - 4 Grade 5 - Acceptable 234,912 1,979 181,851 19,326 - - Grade 5 - Acceptable 234,912 1,979 181,851 19,326 - - Grade 5 - Acceptable 234,912 1,979 18,044 196,545 381,709 - 1,0 Behavioural portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,0 Recovery - 5 902 - 1,319 Recovery - 571 276 1,149 - - -			Corporate		Residential	All Other	Total		
Jun 13 Jungament portfolio Grade 1 - Very Strong 575 Grade 2 - Strong 6,689 - 8,877 41 - Grade 3 - Sound 77,050 - 64,242 2,320 - Grade 4 - Adequate * 106,467 - 155,848 4,671 - 2 Grade 5 - Acceptable 224,912 1,979 181,851 19,326 - 4 Grade 6 - Monitor 122,876 12,297 60,560 2,637 - 1 Grade 7 - Stotstandard 5,150 - 12,120 764 - Grade 8 - Doubtful 269 20,924 325 Grade 9 - Atrisk fores 1,850 24,093 1,818 Total Judgement portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,0 Behavioural portfolio Mot in arrears 32,565 - 318,094 196,545 381,730 9 Active 197 - 3,346 4,517 8,444 Arrangement 45 - 1,985 - 6,116 Non-performing / Repossession 5 - 902 - 1,319 Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (Total Inance receivables 528,069 49,033 805,060 230,963 397,751 2,0 Jun 12 Judgement portfolio Grade 1 - Very Strong 1,280 Grade 2 - Strong 3,273 - 12,648 1,169 - Grade 4 - Adequate * 102,779 58,054 134,472 10,472 - 3 Grade 5 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 4 - Strong 3,273 - 12,648 1,169 - Grade 4 - Adequate * 102,077 68,054 134,472 10,472 - 3 Grade 5 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 4 - Adequate * 102,079 58,054 134,472 10,472 - 3 Grade 5 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 6 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 6 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 6 - Acceptable 3555 61,249 1,335 - 1 Grade 7 - Substandard 32,410 7,397 12,944 569 - Grade 8 - Acceptable 198 13,271 31 - Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 40,921 - 268,823 287,880 354,315 9		Rural	Property	Other	Concentiar	Another	Total		
Judgement portfolio Grade 1 - Very Strong 575 -		\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000		
Grade 1 - Very Strong 575 -	Jun 13								
Grade 2 - Strong 6,689 - 8,877 41 - Grade 3 - Sound 17,050 - 64,242 2,320 - Grade 4 - Adequate* 106,467 - 153,848 4,671 - 2 Grade 5 - Acceptable 234,912 1,979 181,851 19,326 - 4 Grade 7 - Substandard 5,150 - 12,120 764 - Grade 8 - Doubtful 269 20,924 325 - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 1,850 24,093 1,818 - - Total Judgement portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,00 Behavioural portfolio 22,665 - 318,094 196,545 381,730 9 Active 197 - 3,346 4,517 8,444 Non-performing / Repossession 5 - 902 - 1,149 Total Bhadyoural portfolio 32,812 - 324,698 20,338<	Judgement portfolio								
Grade 3 - Sound 17,050 - 64,242 2,320 - Grade 4 - Adequate * 106,467 - 153,848 4,671 - 2 Grade 6 - Adequate * 107,918 181,851 19,326 - 4 Grade 6 - Monitor 122,876 12,297 60,560 2,637 - 1 Grade 7 - Substandard 5,150 - 12,120 764 - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 1,850 24,093 1,818 - - - Total Judgement portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,0 Behavioural portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,0 Monperforming / Repossession 5 - 902 - 1,319 - Recovery - - 571 276 1,149 - - Judgement portfolio 32,812 - 324,998 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134	Grade 1 - Very Strong	575	-	-	-	-	575		
Grade 4 - Adequate * 106,467 - 153,848 4,671 - 2 Grade 5 - Acceptable 234,912 1,979 181,851 19,326 - 1 Grade 5 - Acceptable 122,876 60,560 2,637 - 1 Grade 7 - Substandard 5,150 - 12,120 764 - - Grade 8 - Doubtful 269 20,924 325 - <td>Grade 2 - Strong</td> <td>6,689</td> <td>-</td> <td>8,877</td> <td>41</td> <td>-</td> <td>15,607</td>	Grade 2 - Strong	6,689	-	8,877	41	-	15,607		
Grade 5 - Acceptable 234,912 1,979 181,851 19,326 - 4 Grade 6 - Monitor 122,876 12,297 60,560 2,637 - - Grade 6 - Monitor 269 20,924 325 - - - Grade 8 - Doubtful 269 20,924 325 - - - Total Judgement portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,00 Behavioural portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,644 29,759 - 1,01 Mon arears 32,565 - 318,094 196,545 381,730 9 Active 197 - 3,346 4,517 8,444 - - 6,116 - - 1,319 - - - 1,319 - 1,319 - 1,319 - 1,319 - 1,319 - - - 1,319 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - <	Grade 3 - Sound	17,050	-	64,242	2,320	-	83,612		
Grade 6 - Monitor 122,876 12,297 60,560 2,637 - 1 Grade 7 - Substandard 5,150 - 12,120 764 - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 1,850 24,093 1,818 - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 1,850 24,093 1,818 - - - Total Judgement portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,0 Behavioural portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,0 Active 197 - 3,346 4,517 8,444 Arrangement 45 - 1,985 - 6,116 Non-performing / Repossession 5 - 902 - 1,319 Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (561) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (Total finance receivables 528,069 49,033 805,060 230,963 397,251 2,0 </td <td>Grade 4 - Adequate *</td> <td>106,467</td> <td>-</td> <td>153,848</td> <td>4,671</td> <td>-</td> <td>264,986</td>	Grade 4 - Adequate *	106,467	-	153,848	4,671	-	264,986		
Grade 7 - Substandard 5,150 - 12,120 764 - Grade 8 - Doubtful 269 20,924 325 - - Total Judgement portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,0 Behavioural portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,0 Behavioural portfolio 3346 4,517 8,444 - - - 5,160 - 6,16 - 6,16 - - 6,16 - 1,319 - - - 5,71 276 1,149 - - - 1,149 - - - 7571 276 1,149 - - - - 1,149 - - - - 1,149 - - - - - 1,149 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	Grade 5 - Acceptable	234,912	1,979	181,851	19,326	-	438,068		
Grade 8 - Doubtful 269 20,924 325 - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 1,850 24,093 1,818 - - Total Judgement portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,0 Behavioural portfolio - - 3,346 4,517 8,444 9 Arrangement 45 - 1,985 - 6,116 - 1,149 Non-performing / Repossession 5 902 - 1,319 - - 571 276 1,149 Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (Grade 2 - Strong 3,273 - 1,264 -<	Grade 6 - Monitor	122,876	12,297	60,560	2,637	-	198,370		
Grade 9 - At risk of loss 1,850 24,093 1,818 - Total Judgement portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 - 1,0 Behavioural portfolio Not in arrears 32,565 - 318,094 196,545 381,730 9 Active 197 - 3,346 4,517 8,444 Arrangement 45 - 1,985 - 6,116 Non-performing / Repossession 5 - 902 - 1,319 Recovery - - 571 276 1,149 Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (Grade 2 Strong 1,280 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	Grade 7 - Substandard	5,150	-	12,120	764	-	18,034		
Total Judgement portfolio 495,838 59,293 483,641 29,759 1,0 Behavioural portfolio Not in arrears 32,565 - 318,094 196,545 381,730 9 Active 197 - 3,346 4,517 8,444 Arrangement 45 - 1,985 - 6,116 Non-performing / Repossession 5 - 902 - 1,319 Recovery - - 571 276 1,149 Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (Total Binance receivables 528,069 49,033 805,060 230,963 397,251 2,0 Judgement portfolio - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	Grade 8 - Doubtful	269	20,924	325	-	-	21,518		
Behavioural portfolio Not in arrears 32,565 - 318,094 196,545 381,730 9 Active 197 - 3,346 4,517 8,444 Arrangement 45 - 1,985 - 6,116 Non-performing / Repossession 5 - 902 - 1,319 Recovery - - 571 276 1,149 Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (Total finance receivables 528,069 49,033 805,060 230,963 397,251 2,0 Jun 12 Judgment portfolio -	Grade 9 - At risk of loss	1,850	24,093	1,818	-	-	27,761		
Not in arrears 32,565 - 318,094 196,545 381,730 9 Active 197 - 3,346 4,517 8,444 Arrangement 45 - 1,985 - 6,116 Non-performing / Repossession 5 902 - 1,319 1 Recovery - - 571 276 1,149 1 Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (Judgment portfolio 5 -	Total Judgement portfolio	495,838	59,293	483,641	29,759	-	1,068,531		
Active 197 - 3,346 4,517 8,444 Arrangement 45 - 1,985 - 6,116 Non-performing / Repossession 5 - 902 - 1,319 Recovery - - 571 276 1,149 Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (Total Finance receivables 528,069 49,033 805,060 230,963 397,251 2,0 Judgement portfolio -	Behavioural portfolio								
Arrangement 45 - 1,985 - 6,116 Non-performing / Repossession 5 - 902 - 1,319 Recovery - - 571 276 1,149 Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (1 Total finance receivables 528,069 49,033 805,060 230,963 397,251 2,0 Jun 12 Judgement portfolio - <td>Not in arrears</td> <td>32,565</td> <td>-</td> <td>318,094</td> <td>196,545</td> <td>381,730</td> <td>928,934</td>	Not in arrears	32,565	-	318,094	196,545	381,730	928,934		
Non-performing / Repossession 5 - 902 - 1,319 Recovery - - 571 276 1,149 Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (Total finance receivables 528,069 49,033 805,060 230,963 397,251 2,0 Judgement portfolio Grade 1 Very Strong 1,280 - <	Active	197	-	3,346	4,517	8,444	16,504		
Recovery - - 571 276 1,149 Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (Total finance receivables 528,069 49,033 805,060 230,963 397,251 2,0 Judgement portfolio -	Arrangement	45	-	1,985	-	6,116	8,146		
Total Behavioural portfolio 32,812 - 324,898 201,338 398,758 9 Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (Total finance receivables 528,069 49,033 805,060 230,963 397,251 2,0 Judgement portfolio -	Non-performing / Repossession	5	-	902	-	1,319	2,226		
Provision for collectively impaired assets (581) (10,260) (3,479) (134) (1,507) (1 Total finance receivables 528,069 49,033 805,060 230,963 397,251 2,0 Jun 12 Judgement portfolio 5 6 1	Recovery	-	-	571	276	1,149	1,996		
Total finance receivables 528,069 49,033 805,060 230,963 397,251 2,0 Jun 12 Judgement portfolio -	Total Behavioural portfolio	32,812	-	324,898	201,338	398,758	957,806		
Jun 12 Judgement portfolio Grade 1 - Very Strong 1,280 - - - - Grade 2 - Strong 3,273 - 12,648 1,169 - Grade 3 - Sound 20,137 6,018 52,240 4,564 - Grade 4 - Adequate * 120,779 58,054 134,472 10,472 - 3 Grade 5 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 6 - Monitor 121,666 565 61,249 1,835 - 1 Grade 8 - Doubtful 4,994 8,141 961 - - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 169 13,271 31 - - - Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Moti n arrears 39,887 - <td>Provision for collectively impaired assets</td> <td>(581)</td> <td>(10,260)</td> <td>(3,479)</td> <td>(134)</td> <td>(1,507)</td> <td>(15,961</td>	Provision for collectively impaired assets	(581)	(10,260)	(3,479)	(134)	(1,507)	(15,961		
Judgement portfolio Grade 1 - Very Strong 1,280 - - - - Grade 2 - Strong 3,273 - 12,648 1,169 - Grade 3 - Sound 20,137 6,018 52,240 4,564 - Grade 4 - Adequate * 120,779 58,054 134,472 10,472 - 3 Grade 5 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 6 - Monitor 121,666 565 61,249 1,835 - 1 Grade 7 - Substandard 32,410 7,397 12,984 569 - - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 169 13,271 31 - - - Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 Arrangement 365 - 4,143 972 8,270 Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,624 - 1,624	Total finance receivables	528,069	49,033	805,060	230,963	397,251	2,010,376		
Judgement portfolio Grade 1 - Very Strong 1,280 - - - - Grade 2 - Strong 3,273 - 12,648 1,169 - Grade 3 - Sound 20,137 6,018 52,240 4,564 - Grade 3 - Sound 20,779 58,054 134,472 10,472 - 3 Grade 5 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 6 - Monitor 121,666 565 61,249 1,835 - 1 Grade 7 - Substandard 32,410 7,397 12,984 569 - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 169 13,271 31 - - - Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 - Not in arrears 39,887 - 2,59,493 283,301 338,438 9 Active 244 - 2,443 1,657 5	Jun 12								
Grade 1 - Very Strong 1,280 -<									
Grade 2 - Strong 3,273 - 12,648 1,169 - Grade 3 - Sound 20,137 6,018 52,240 4,564 - Grade 4 - Adequate * 120,779 58,054 134,472 10,472 - 3 Grade 5 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 6 - Monitor 121,666 565 61,249 1,835 - 1 Grade 7 - Substandard 32,410 7,397 12,984 569 - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 169 13,271 31 - - - - Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 Arrangement 365 - 4,143 972 8,270 Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,972 1,950 383	•	1,280	-	-	-	-	1,280		
Grade 3 - Sound 20,137 6,018 52,240 4,564 - Grade 4 - Adequate * 120,779 58,054 134,472 10,472 - 3 Grade 5 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 6 - Monitor 121,666 565 61,249 1,835 - 1 Grade 7 - Substandard 32,410 7,397 12,984 569 - - Grade 8 - Doubtful 4,994 8,141 961 - - - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 169 13,271 31 - - - - Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 Arrangement 365 - 4,143 972 8,270 Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,972 1,950			-	12.648	1,169	-	17,090		
Grade 4 - Adequate * 120,779 58,054 134,472 10,472 - 3 Grade 5 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 6 - Monitor 121,666 565 61,249 1,835 - 1 Grade 7 - Substandard 32,410 7,397 12,984 569 - - Grade 8 - Doubtful 4,994 8,141 961 - - - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 169 13,271 31 -	_		6 018			-	82,959		
Grade 5 - Acceptable 220,508 23,388 181,421 17,704 - 4 Grade 6 - Monitor 121,666 565 61,249 1,835 - 1 Grade 7 - Substandard 32,410 7,397 12,984 569 - - Grade 8 - Doubtful 4,994 8,141 961 - - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 169 13,271 31 - - - Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 36,313 - 1,1 Maringement 365 - 4,143 972 8,270 - 1,624 Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,972 1,950 383 - 1,624 - 1,624						-	323,777		
Grade 6 - Monitor 121,666 565 61,249 1,835 - 1 Grade 7 - Substandard 32,410 7,397 12,984 569 - - Grade 8 - Doubtful 4,994 8,141 961 - - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 169 13,271 31 - - - Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 36,313 - 1,1 Maringement 365 - 4,143 972 8,270 383 383 383 383 383 383 383 383 383 383 383 383 383 383						-	443,021		
Grade 7 - Substandard 32,410 7,397 12,984 569 - Grade 8 - Doubtful 4,994 8,141 961 - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 169 13,271 31 - - Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 Arrangement 365 - 4,143 972 8,270 Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,972 1,950 383 Recovery 344 - 772 - 1,624 Total Behavioural portfolio 40,921 - 268,823 287,880 354,315 9						-	185,315		
Grade 8 - Doubtful 4,994 8,141 961 - - Grade 9 - At risk of loss 169 13,271 31 - - Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 2 2 2 338,438 9 Active 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 Arrangement 365 - 4,143 972 8,270 Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,972 1,950 383 Recovery 344 - 772 - 1,624 Total Behavioural portfolio 40,921 - 268,823 287,880 354,315 9						-	53,360		
Grade 9 - At risk of loss 169 13,271 31 - - Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio 39,887 - 259,493 283,301 338,438 9 Active 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 4,143 972 8,270 Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,972 1,950 383 83 Recovery 344 - 772 - 1,624						-	14,096		
Total Judgement portfolio 525,216 116,834 456,006 36,313 - 1,1 Behavioural portfolio					-	-	13,471		
Not in arrears 39,887 - 259,493 283,301 338,438 9 Active 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 Arrangement 365 - 4,143 972 8,270 Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,972 1,950 383 Recovery 344 - 772 - 1,624 Total Behavioural portfolio 40,921 - 268,823 287,880 354,315 9						-	1,134,369		
Not in arrears 39,887 - 259,493 283,301 338,438 9 Active 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 Arrangement 365 - 4,143 972 8,270 Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,972 1,950 383 Recovery 344 - 772 - 1,624 Total Behavioural portfolio 40,921 - 268,823 287,880 354,315 9	Behavioural portfolio								
Active 244 - 2,443 1,657 5,600 Arrangement 365 - 4,143 972 8,270 Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,972 1,950 383 Recovery 344 - 772 - 1,624 Total Behavioural portfolio 40,921 - 268,823 287,880 354,315 9	•	39,887	-	259,493	283,301	338,438	921,119		
Arrangement 365 - 4,143 972 8,270 Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,972 1,950 383 Recovery 344 - 772 - 1,624 Total Behavioural portfolio 40,921 - 268,823 287,880 354,315 9			-				9,944		
Non-performing / Repossession 81 - 1,972 1,950 383 Recovery 344 - 772 - 1,624 Total Behavioural portfolio 40,921 - 268,823 287,880 354,315 9			-				13,750		
Recovery 344 - 772 - 1,624 Total Behavioural portfolio 40,921 - 268,823 287,880 354,315 9			-				4,386		
Total Behavioural portfolio 40,921 - 268,823 287,880 354,315 9			-				2,740		
Provision for collectively impaired assets (1,823) (960) (3,315) (79) (1,855)			-		287,880		951,939		
	Provision for collectively impaired assets	(1,823)	(960)	(3,315)	(79)	(1,855)	(8,032		
Total finance receivables 564,314 115,874 721,514 324,114 352,460 2,0	Total finance receivables	564,314	115,874	721,514	324,114	352,460	2,078,276		

* In determining the Group's risk grading, the following arrangements have been taken into consideration:

- PGG Wrightson Finance Limited guaranteed loans, refer to Note 36(f) - Credit risk exposure for more details. In the risk grading table above, as at 30 June 2013 \$6 million (2012: \$29 million) of Judgement loans have been transferred from risk grades below Acceptable to an Adequate risk grade as they are covered by the Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity with PGG Wrightson Limited.

- The RECL Agreement, refer to Note 36(e) - Credit risk exposure for more details. In the risk grading table above, as at 30 June 2012 \$48 million of Judgement loans had been transferred from risk grades below Acceptable to an Adequate risk grade as they were covered by the RECL Agreement. The RECL Agreement was terminated on 4 June 2013.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

37 Asset quality (continued)

(e) Provision for impairment

For Behavioural loans, as arrears drive provision outcomes, the trend in arrears behaviour is an indicator of future provisioning impact. Each arrears classification carries a provision for potential loss based on historical experience for that classification in the same portfolio.

Judgement loans in grades 6 to 8 ordinarily attract a collective provision based on risk grading overlaid with the strength of security position, except for risk grades 6 which have strong security and accordingly attract no collective provision (typically rural exposures). Other collective provisions are also maintained where considered appropriate against a class of loans or those with common risk characteristics. Judgement loans with a risk grade of 1 to 5 may be past due and not attract a provision if the Group has reviewed the risk position and it is deemed to remain sound. Under such circumstances normally an amended credit risk grade will result.

The Group raises provisions based on historical loss experience for loans risk graded in grades 6 to 8. Loans in grade 9 of the Judgement portfolio are individually assessed for impairment.

			GRO	OUP		
		Corporate		Residential	All Other	Total
	Rural	Property	Other	Residential	All Other	TOLAT
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Jun 13						
Provision for individually impaired assets						
Opening provision for individually impaired assets	696	16,917	1,086	695	-	19,394
Impairment loss for the year						
- charge for the year	687	9,115	3,036	263	-	13,101
- RECL recovery	-	9,809	-	-	-	9,809
- recoveries	26	1	135	-	-	162
- write offs	(266)	(3,424)	(2,058)	(931)	-	(6,679)
- effect of discounting	(18)	(1,166)	(46)	(27)	-	(1,257)
Closing provision for individually impaired assets	1,125	31,252	2,153	-	-	34,530
Provision for collectively impaired assets						
Opening provision for collective impaired assets	1,823	960	3,315	79	1,855	8,032
Impairment loss for the year						
- charge/(credit) for the year	(1,244)	9,090	980	62	538	9,426
- RECL recovery	-	216	-	-	-	216
- recoveries	6	1	114	-	147	268
- write offs	(4)	(7)	(930)	(7)	(1,033)	(1,981)
Closing provision for collective impaired assets	581	10,260	3,479	134	1,507	15,961
Total provision for impairment	1,706	41,512	5,632	134	1,507	50,491
Jun 12						
Provision for individually impaired assets Opening provision for individually impaired assets	134	20,047	5,976			26 157
	134	20,047	5,976	-	-	26,157
Impairment loss for the year	4 004	2 007	4 500	005		0.004
- charge for the year * - recoveries	1,001 35	3,697 32	1,528 160	695	-	6,921 227
					-	
- write offs	(1,758)	(6,704)	(6,174)			(14,636)
- assumed on acquisition	1,284	-	-	-	-	1,284
- effect of discounting Closing provision for individually impaired assets	- 696	(155) 16,917	(404) 1,086	- 695	-	(559) 19,394
	090	10,917	1,000	690	-	19,394
Provision for collectively impaired assets						
Opening provision for collective impaired assets	2,501	1,595	5,079	2,037	928	12,140
Impairment loss for the year	(000)	(007)	(400)	(1.050)	0.450	(4.070)
- charge/(credit) for the year *	(682)	(907)	(182)	(1,958)	2,450	(1,279)
- recoveries	4	-	231	-	116	351
- write offs	-	272	(1,813)	-	(1,639)	(3,180)
Closing provision for collective impaired assets	1,823	960	3,315	79	1,855	8,032
Total provision for impairment	2,519	17,877	4,401	774	1,855	27,426

* In determining the charge for the year ended 30 June 2012, the RECL Agreement was taken into consideration, refer to Note 36(e) - Credit risk exposure for more details. In assessing the requirements for provisions, the Group identified loans for which a loss was expected to be covered by the RECL Agreement of \$28.5 million as at 30 June 2012, and to this extent the RECL Agreement was fully utilised. The agreement covered the MARAC non-core property loans with a net book value of \$94 million as at 30 June 2012.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

38 Liquidity risk

Contractual liquidity profile of financial assets and liabilities

The following tables show the cash flows on the Group's financial liabilities and unrecognised loan commitments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity. In the following tables, total financial assets do not include unrecognised loan commitments and total financial liabilities do not include undrawn committed bank facilities.

The tables have been prepared using estimates of the average interest rate applicable for each asset or liability class during the contractual term.

				GROUP			
	On	0-6	6-12	1-2	2-5	5+	
	Demand	Months	Months	Years	Years	Years	Tota
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Jun 13							
Cash and cash equivalents	174,262	-	-	-	-	-	174,262
Investments	11,520	1,647	47,882	36,923	79,522	-	177,494
Finance receivables	-	562,696	283,239	415,549	496,023	448,422	2,205,929
Finance receivables - securitised	-	55,889	55,910	89,524	91,789	65,199	358,311
Derivative financial assets	649	-	-	-	-	-	649
Other financial assets	-	7,286	-	-	-	-	7,286
Total financial assets	186,431	627,518	387,031	541,996	667,334	513,621	2,923,931
Borrowings	452,201	859,386	387,733	119,944	63,501	-	1,882,765
Borrowings - securitised	-	4,496	260,834	-	-	-	265,330
Derivative financial liabilities	30	-	-	-	-	-	30
Other financial liabilities	-	17,394	-	-	-	-	17,394
Total financial liabilities	452,231	881,276	648,567	119,944	63,501	-	2,165,519
Net financial (liabilities) / assets	(265,800)	(253,758)	(261,536)	422,052	603,833	513,621	758,412
Unrecognised loan commitments	106,702	-	-	-	-	-	106,702
Undrawn committed bank facilities	240,000	-	-	-	-	-	240,000

The undrawn committed bank facilities totalling \$240.0 million were available to be drawn down on demand. To the extent drawn, 240.0 million is contractually repayable in 6-12 months' time upon facility expiry.

Jun 12

Cash and cash equivalents	89,689	-	-	-	-	-	89,689
Investments	-	498	498	996	25,314	-	27,306
Finance receivables	-	572,857	336,063	342,005	509,685	638,107	2,398,717
Finance receivables - securitised	-	53,568	54,157	86,874	83,887	112,015	390,501
Derivative financial assets	2,122	-	-	-	-	-	2,122
Other financial assets	-	3,080	-	-	-	-	3,080
Total financial assets	91,811	630,003	390,718	429,875	618,886	750,122	2,911,415
Borrowings	237,036	760,301	419,224	272,619	49,549	-	1,738,729
Borrowings - securitised	-	4,578	192,072	75,157	-	-	271,807
Derivative financial liabilities	1,459	-	-	-	-	-	1,459
Other financial liabilities	-	18,329	-	-	-	-	18,329
Total financial liabilities	238,495	783,208	611,296	347,776	49,549	-	2,030,324
Net financial (liabilities) / assets	(146,684)	(153,205)	(220,578)	82,099	569,337	750,122	881,091
Unrecognised loan commitments	125,492	-	-	-	-	-	125,492
Undrawn committed bank facilities	335,000	-	-	-	-	-	335,000

The undrawn committed bank facilities totalling \$335.0 million are available to be drawn down on demand. To the extent drawn, \$50.0 million is contractually repayable in 0-6 months' time, \$110.0 million is contractually repayable in 6-12 months' time and \$175.0 million is contractually repayable in 1-2 years' time upon facility expiry.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

38 Liquidity risk (continued)

Expected maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities

The tables below show management's expected maturities of existing financial assets and financial liabilities.

Expected maturities of financial assets are based on management's best estimate having regard to current market conditions and past experience. Historical deposit reinvestment levels have been applied to borrowings. Other financial liabilities reflect contractual maturities.

The below does not reflect a forward looking view of how the Group expects actual financial assets and liabilities to perform in the future, as it does not include new lending and borrowing.

				GROUP			
	On	0-6	6-12	1-2	2-5	5+	
	Demand	Months	Months	Years	Years	Years	Tota
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Jun 13							
Cash and cash equivalents	174,262	-	-	-	-	-	174,262
Investments	11,520	1,647	47,882	36,923	79,522	-	177,494
Finance receivables	-	520,198	421,900	514,305	468,854	61,358	1,986,615
Finance receivables - securitised	-	81,562	72,570	97,603	64,991	776	317,502
Derivative financial assets	649	-	-	-	-	-	649
Other financial assets	-	7,286	-	-	-	-	7,286
Total financial assets	186,431	610,693	542,352	648,831	613,367	62,134	2,663,808
Borrowings	4,522	342,029	231,600	357,000	590,880	474,783	2,000,814
Borrowings - securitised	-	53,918	3,572	7,203	21,628	210,000	296,321
Derivative financial liabilities	30	-	-	-	-	-	30
Other financial liabilities	-	17,394	-	-	-	-	17,394
Total financial liabilities	4,552	413,341	235,172	364,203	612,508	684,783	2,314,559
Net financial assets / (liabilities)	181,879	197,352	307,180	284,628	859	(622,649)	349,249
Unrecognised loan commitments	106,702				_		106,702
Undrawn committed bank facilities	240,000	_	_		_	_	240,000
Jun 12	.,						
5011 12							
Cash and cash equivalents	89,689	-	-	-	-	-	89,689
Investments	-	498	498	996	25,314	-	27,306
Finance receivables	-	579,947	386,570	372,340	666,179	56,459	2,061,495
Finance receivables - securitised	-	67,976	60,171	82,716	115,136	-	325,999
Derivative financial assets	2,122	-	-	-	-	-	2,122
Other financial assets	-	3,080	-	-	-	-	3,080
Total financial assets	91,811	651,501	447,239	456,052	806,629	56,459	2,509,691
Borrowings	2,370	267,212	226,095	456,293	546,244	359,443	1,857,657
Borrowings - securitised	-	4,578	4,503	9,082	27,269	265,746	311,178
Derivative financial liabilities	1,459	-	-	-	-	-	1,459
Other financial liabilities	-	18,329	-	-	-	-	18,329
Total financial liabilities	3,829	290,119	230,598	465,375	573,513	625,189	2,188,623
Net financial assets / (liabilities)	87,982	361,382	216,641	(9,323)	233,116	(568,730)	321,068
Unrecognised loan commitments	125,492	-	-	-	-	-	125,492
Undrawn committed bank facilities	335,000	-	-	-	-	-	335,000

For the year ended 30 June 2013

39 Interest rate risk

Contractual Repricing Analysis

The interest rate risk profile of financial assets and liabilities that follows has been prepared on the basis of maturity or next repricing date, whichever is earlier.

				GROUP			
	0-3	4-6	6-12	1-2	2+ N	lon-interest	
	Months	Months	Months	Years	Years	bearing	Tota
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Jun 13							
Financial assets							
Cash and cash equivalents	174,262	-	-	-	-	-	174,262
Investments	128,370	-	15,545	4,291	17,017	-	165,223
Finance receivables	1,206,542	95,833	147,126	157,208	128,155	534	1,735,398
Finance receivables - securitised	80,968	29,685	50,699	67,597	46,029	-	274,978
Other financial assets	649	-	-	-	-	7,286	7,935
Total financial assets	1,590,791	125,518	213,370	229,096	191,201	7,820	2,357,796
Financial liabilities							
Borrowings	961,916	339,250	373,581	111,129	52,743	-	1,838,619
Borrowings - securitised	258,934	-	-	-	-	-	258,934
Other financial liabilities	30	-	-	-	-	17,394	17,424
Total financial liabilities	1,220,880	339,250	373,581	111,129	52,743	17,394	2,114,977
Effect of derivatives held for risk management	179,350	(18,700)	(45,330)	(61,200)	(54,120)	-	-
Net financial assets	549,261	(232,432)	(205,541)	56,767	84,338	(9,574)	242,819
Jun 12							
Financial assets							
Cash and cash equivalents	89,689	-	-	-	-	-	89,689
Investments	22,149	-	-	-	2,178	-	24,327
Finance receivables	1,248,945	98,677	153,534	172,003	127,642	707	1,801,508
Finance receivables - securitised	89,285	30,031	49,895	69,868	37,689	-	276,768
Other financial assets	2,122	-	-	-	-	3,080	5,202
Total financial assets	1,452,190	128,708	203,429	241,871	167,509	3,787	2,197,494
Financial liabilities							
Borrowings	669,815	308,897	396,086	259,956	40,376	-	1,675,130
Borrowings - securitised	75,105	189,254	-	-	-	-	264,359
Other financial liabilities	1,459	-	-	-	-	18,329	19,788
Total financial liabilities	746,379	498,151	396,086	259,956	40,376	18,329	1,959,277
Effect of derivatives held for risk management	218,387	42,690	(43,869)	(175,718)	(41,490)		-
Net financial assets	924,198	(326,753)	(236,526)	(193,803)	85,643	(14,542)	238,217

The tables above illustrate the periods in which the cash flows from interest rate swaps are expected to occur and affect profit or loss.

The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of the Group's financial assets and liabilities to various standard and non standard interest rate scenarios. Standard scenarios which are considered on a monthly basis include a 100 basis point parallel fall or rise in the yield curve. There is no material impact on profit or loss in terms of a fair value change from movements in market interest rates. Furthermore there is no material cash flow impact on the Statements of Cash Flows from a 100 basis point change in interest rates.

For the year ended 30 June 2013

40 Concentrations of funding

	GRO	GROUP		ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$00
Concentration of funding by industry				
Finance	258,934	314,369	-	
Households	1,732,074	1,518,657	-	
Listed bond	106,545	106,463	-	
Total borrowings	2,097,553	1,939,489	-	

(b) Concentration of funding by geographical area

Total borrowings	2,097,553	1,939,489	-	-
Overseas	81,112	75,652	-	-
Rest of South Island	184,800	173,787	-	-
Canterbury	725,365	681,474	-	-
Rest of North Island	392,056	325,091	-	-
Wellington	304,297	240,758	-	-
Auckland	409,923	442,727	-	-

41 Contingent liabilities and commitments

	GROU	GROUP		ANY
	Jun 13	Jun 12	Jun 13	Jun 12
	\$000	\$000	\$000	\$000
Letters of credit, guarantees and performance bonds	5,033	13,404	-	-
Total contingent liabilities	5,033	13,404	-	-

The Group also has contingent commitments to fund at future dates as set out in Note 36(d) - Credit risk exposure.

42 Events after the reporting date

Maturity of NZDX listed bond

On 15 July 2013 the NZDX listed bond matured and was repaid in full from funds reported within Cash and Cash equivalents as at 30 June 2013.

CBS Trust securitisation facility

On 31 July 2013, the Group cancelled \$50 million of the CBS Trust securitisation facility. On 15 August 2013, the remaining \$50 million CBS Trust securitisation facility was cancelled and all of the receivables in CBS Trust were sold back to the Bank.

Declaration of dividend

On 26 August 2013, the Directors resolved to pay a final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2013 of \$9.7 million, representing 2.5 cents per share. The dividend is payable on 4 October 2013.

There have been no other material events after the reporting date that would affect the interpretation of the financial statements or the performance of the Group.

8.0 Audit Report



Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Heartland New Zealand Limited

Report on the company and group financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Heartland New Zealand Limited ("the company") and the group, comprising the company and its subsidiaries, on pages 21 to 61. The financial statements comprise the statements of financial position as at 30 June 2013, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, for both the company and the group.

Directors' responsibility for the company and group financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of company and group financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and International Financial Reporting Standards that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of company and group financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these company and group financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the company and group financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the company and group financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company and group's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company and group's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Our firm has also provided other services to the company and group in relation to general accounting services. Subject to restrictions, partners and employees of our firm may also deal with the company and group on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the company and group. These matters have not impaired our independence as auditor of the company and group. The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the company and group.



Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements on pages 21 to 61:

- comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
- comply with International Financial Reporting Standards;
- give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company and the group as at 30 June 2013 and of the financial performance and cash flows of the company and the group for the year then ended.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with the requirements of sections 16(1)(d) and 16(1)(e) of the Financial Reporting Act 1993, we report that:

- we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and
- in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by Heartland New Zealand Limited as far as appears from our examination of those records.

KPMG

26 August 2013 Auckland

9.0 Director Disclosures and Executive Remuneration

Directors

The following persons were directors of the Company and the Company's subsidiaries during the year ended 30 June 2013.

Heartland New Zealand Limited

Jeffrey Kenneth Greenslade Bruce Robertson Irvine Graham Russell Kennedy Gary Richard Leech Christopher Robert Mace Geoffrey Thomas Ricketts Gregory Raymond Tomlinson (appointed 18 March 2013) Non-Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director Non-Independent Director

Heartland Financial Services Limited

Jeffrey Kenneth Greenslade

Heartland NZ Holdings Limited (formerly BSHL No.1 Limited)¹

Jeffrey Kenneth Greenslade

Heartland NZ Trustee Limited

Jeffrey Kenneth Greenslade Bruce Robertson Irvine

Heartland Bank Limited (formerly Heartland Building Society)

Jeffrey Kenneth Greenslade Edward John Harvey Bruce Robertson Irvine Graham Russell Kennedy Gary Richard Leech Christopher Robert Mace Geoffrey Thomas Ricketts Michelle Anne Smith (resigned 1 February 2013) Richard Arthur Wilks (appointed 1 February 2013)

MARAC Finance Limited

Jeffrey Kenneth Greenslade Bruce Robertson Irvine

VPS Parnell Limited

Bruce Robertson Irvine Mark Stephen Mountcastle (appointed 2 November 2012)

VPS Properties Limited

Bruce Robertson Irvine Mark Stephen Mountcastle (appointed 2 November 2012)

CBS Canterbury Limited Graham Russell Kennedy

Canterbury Building Society Limited Graham Russell Kennedy

Southern Cross Nominees Limited Geoffrey Thomas Ricketts

Southern Cross Building and Investments Limited Geoffrey Thomas Ricketts

PGG Wrightson Finance Limited

Bruce Robertson Irvine Jeffrey Kenneth Greenslade

¹ On 8 February 2013, BSHL No.2 Limited – BSHL No.20 Limited amalgamated to become BSHL No.1 Limited that changed its name on amalgamation to Heartland NZ Holdings Limited.

Interests Register

The following are the entries in the Interests Register of the Company and the Company's subsidiaries made during the year ended 30 June 2013.

Indemnification and Insurance of Directors

The Company has given indemnities to, and has effected insurance for, directors of the Company and the Company's subsidiaries to indemnify and insure them in respect of any liability for, or costs incurred in relation to, any act or omission in their capacity as directors, to the extent permitted by the Companies Act 1993. The cost of the insurance premiums to the Company and the Company's subsidiaries for the year was \$47,437.50.

Share Dealings by Directors

Details of individual directors' share dealings as entered in the Interests Register of the Company under Section 148(2) of the Companies Act 1993 during the year ended 30 June 2013 are as follows:

B R Irvine

No. of Shares	Class of Shares	Nature of Relevant Interest	Acquisition/Disposal	Consideration	Date of Acquisition/ Disposal
1,272	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	Nil	30 January 2013

J K Greenslade

No. of Shares	Class of Shares	Nature of Relevant Interest	Acquisition/Disposal	Consideration	Date of Acquisition/ Disposal
307,083	Ordinary	Beneficial	Acquisition	\$184,250	25 September 2012

G R Leech

No. of Shares	Class of Shares	Nature of Relevant Interest	Acquisition/Disposal	Consideration	Date of Acquisition/ Disposal
2,406	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$1,907	26 June 2013
2,381	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$1,887	26 June 2013
2,406	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$1,907	26 June 2013
2,406	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$1,907	26 June 2013

G R Kennedy

No. of Shares	Class of Shares	Nature of Relevant Interest	Acquisition/Disposal	Consideration	Date of Acquisition/ Disposal
96,000	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$51,840	16 August 2012
4,054	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$2,270	16 August 2012
45,946	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$28,945	26 September 2012
70,949	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$48,215	07 January 2013
54,000	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$36,720	24 January 2013
12,025	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$8,778	05 March 2013
37,975	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$27,721	06 March 2013
105,000	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$77,700	11 March 2013
400,000	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal - resignation as trustee	Nil	11 March 2013
50,000	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$37,500	15 March 2013
325,000	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$247,000	08 April 2013
325,000	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Disposal	\$247,000	08 April 2013
10,000	Ordinary	Non-beneficial	Acquisition	Nil	18 June 2013

G R Tomlinson

No. of Shares	Class of Shares	Nature of Relevant Interest	Acquisition/Disposal	Consideration	Date of Acquisition/ Disposal
36,695,489	Ordinary	Beneficial	Initial Disclosure	Nil	18 March 2013

General Notice of Disclosure of Interest in the Interests Register

Director	Capacity	Date	Disclosure
J K Greenslade	Director of Heartland New Zealand Limited	31 August 2012	Director and Shareholder of Brew Greenslade & Company Limited, and an indirect shareholder via Brew Greenslade Company Limited in Provisional Tax Finance Limited.
G R Kennedy	Director of Heartland New Zealand Limited	5 April 2013	Appointment as a Director of Bradford Management 2013 Limited on 14 March 2013.
G R Leech	Director of Heartland New Zealand Limited	31 August 2012	Director of Ashburton Implement Services Limited, Back Track Dairies Limited, Bakker Bulbs Limited, Cariboo New Zealand (2011) Limited, Clock Trustees Limited, Hooked Trustee Company Limited, Leech & Partners Trustees (2004) Limited, Leech & Partners Trustees (2007) Limited, Leech & Partners Trustees (2009) Limited, Leech & Partners Trustees (2010) Limited, Leech & Partners Trustees (2011) Limited, Leech & Partners Trustees (2012) Limited, Londale Development Limited, Lye Properties Limited, McGoldrick Trustees Limited, Northbank Irrigation Limited', Power Turf Limited ² , Radfield Trustees Limited, Sempiternal Custodians Limited, South Pacific Seed Sales (NZ) Limited, TCB Results Limited, Te Mahanga Trustee Company Limited, and Woodams Properties Limited ³ .
		30 November 2012	Appointment as a director of The New Zealand Sock Company Limited on 25 September 2012.
C R Mace	Director of Heartland New Zealand Limited	3 May 2013	Appointment to the Tertiary Education Commission Board on 3 April 2013.
G T Ricketts	Director of Heartland New Zealand Limited	30 November 2012	Appointment as a Director of Shopping Centres Australasia Property Group Trustee NZ Limited on 30 October 2012.
G R Tomlinson	Director of Heartland New Zealand Limited	3 May 2013	A Director of Argenta Limited, Aotearoa Assets Limited, Chippies Vineyard Limited, Doyen Investments Limited, Forte Health Limited, Impact Capital Limited, Impact Capital Management Limited, Indevin Group Limited, Indevin Supply Limited, Little Ngakuta Trust Company Limited, Lokoya Limited, Nearco Stud Limited, Ngakuta Trust Company Limited, Oceania Village Company Limited, Pelorus Finance Limited, Retirement Care (NZ) Limited, St Leonards Limited, The Homestead 2006 Limited and Tom3 Limited.
R A Wilks	Director of Heartland Bank Limited	3 May 2013	A Director of New Zealand Experience Limited, Rainbow's End Theme Park Limited, Rangatira Limited and The New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited.

Directors' Relevant Interests

Set out in the table below are the Heartland New Zealand Limited shares in which each director of the Company had a relevant interest as at 30 June 2013.

At 30 June 2013	Beneficial	Non-Beneficial
J K Greenslade	879,062	2,017,273
B R Irvine	454,398	7,686,316
G R Kennedy	481,052	5,788,827
G R Leech	172,451	235,765
C R Mace	12,285,439	5,700,456
G T Ricketts	12,285,439	5,700,456
G R Tomlinson	36,695,489	0

Resigned 17 June 2013.
 Resigned 26 February 2013.

Directors' Remuneration

The total remuneration received by each director who held office in the Company and the Company's subsidiaries during the year ended 30 June 2013 was as follows.

Director	Remuneration
B R Irvine	\$162,500
C R Mace	\$ 92,500
G T Ricketts	\$ 85,000
G R Kennedy	\$ 92,500
G R Leech	\$ 95,000
M A Smith (retired 1 February 2013)	\$ 47,384
E J Harvey	\$ 90,000
G R Tomlinson (appointed 18 March 2013)	\$ 21,667
R A Wilks (appointed 1 February 2013)	\$ 40,000

The total remuneration paid was \$726,552.29.

Remuneration and/or Other Benefits from the Company to the Executive Director

The Company has made a grant to J K Greenslade under the Heartland LTI Cash Entitlements Plan. The grant date was 23 November 2012, the Reference Price was \$0.7205 and the Reference Pool was 1,350,000 HNZ shares (see note 33 of the financial statements for further details on this plan).

Executive directors and employees acting as directors do not receive director's fees.

The total remuneration and value of other benefits (including the grant above) of the executive director was as follows:

J K Greenslade \$1,390,482

Executive Remuneration

The number of employees of the Company and the Company's subsidiaries (including former employees), other than directors, who received remuneration, including non-cash benefits, in excess of \$100,000 for the year ended 30 June 2013 is set out in the remuneration bands detailed below.

Remuneration	Number
\$100,000 to \$109,999	8
\$110,000 to \$119,999	6
\$120,000 to \$129,999	14
\$130,000 to \$139,999	7
\$140,000 to \$149,999	10
\$150,000 to \$159,999	7
\$160,000 to \$169,999	2
\$170,000 to \$179,999	4
\$180,000 to \$189,999	1
\$190,000 to \$199,999	3
\$200,000 to \$209,999	2
\$220,000 to \$229,999	1
\$240,000 to \$249,999	2
\$250,000 to \$259,999	1
\$260,000 to \$269,999	1
\$280,000 to \$289,999	1
\$390,000 to \$399,999	2
\$540,000 to \$549,999	1
\$630,000 to \$639,999	1
\$650,000 to \$659,999	1
\$730,000 to \$739,999	1

10.0 Shareholder Information

Spread of Shares

Set out below are details of the spread of shareholders of the Company as at 1 August 2013.

Size of Holding	Number of Shareholders	Total Number of Shares	% of Issued Shares	
1–1,000 shares	1,064	650,147	0.17	
1,001-5,000 shares	2,449	6,512,552 1.68		
5,001-10,000 shares	1,433	10,856,025	2.79	
10,001-50,000 shares	2,310	53,726,289	13.82	
50,001-100,000 shares	506	36,190,334	9.31	
100,001 shares and over	330	280,768,628	72.23	
TOTAL	8,092	388,703,975	100%	

Twenty Largest Shareholders

Set out below are details of the 20 largest shareholders of the Company as at 1 August 2013.

Rank	Shareholder	Total Shares	% of Total Shareholders	
1	Harrogate Trustee Limited	36,695,489	9.44	
2	Accident Compensation Corporation	21,254,284	5.47	
3	Philip Maurice Carter	20,973,492	5.4	
4	PGG Wrightson Limited	13,333,333	3.43	
5	Oceania & Eastern Limited	12,285,439	3.16	
6	Cogent Nominees Limited	12,008,764	3.09	
7	Gould Holdings Limited	7,417,427	1.91	
8	HSBC Nominees (New Zealand) Limited	6,719,424	1.73	
9	Citibank Nominees (NZ) Limited	6,664,221	1.71	
10	Leveraged Equities Finance Limited	6,518,340	1.68	
11	National Nominees New Zealand Limited	5,959,666	1.53	
12	FNZ Custodians Limited	5,753,163	1.48	
13	Jarden Custodians Limited	4,500,000	1.16	
14	Investment Custodial Services Limited	4,464,273	1.15	
15	Investment Custodial Services Limited	4,028,738	1.04	
16	New Zealand Superannuation Fund Nominees Limited	3,776,134	0.97	
17	Heartland Trust	3,420,197	0.88	
18	New Zealand Permanent Trustees Limited	3,150,000	0.81	
19	Custodial Services Limited	2,906,391	0.75	
20	Forsyth Barr Custodians Limited	2,799,787	0.72	
TOTAL FOR TOP 20 HOLDERS		184,628,562	47.50	

Substantial Security Holders

At 1 August 2013, the following security holders had given notice in accordance with the Securities Markets Act 1988 that they were substantial security holders in the Company. The number of shares shown below are as advised in the most recent substantial security holder notices to the Company and may not be their holding as at 1 August 2013.

Name	Number of Shares	Class of Shares
Accident Compensation Corporation, Nicholas Bagnall, Blair Tallott, Paul Robertshawe and Blair Cooper	23,351,310	Ordinary
Blair Cooper (includes ACC's relevant interest)	21,113,919	Ordinary
Blair Tallott (includes ACC's relevant interest)	21,123,239	Ordinary
Harrogate Trustee Limited and Gregory Raymond Tomlinson	34,510,011	Ordinary
Philip Maurice Carter	20,973,492	Ordinary

The total number of Heartland New Zealand Limited ordinary shares on issue as at 1 August 2013 was 388,703,975.



11.0 Other Information

NZX Waivers

Set out below is a summary of all waivers granted to the Company by NZX Limited within, or relied on by the Company, within the 12 month period preceding the date two months before the publication of this Annual Report.

The Company was granted a waiver from NZSX Listing Rule 7.6.4(b)(iii) to enable it to include its Chief Executive Officer within the participating employees under an employee share plan established for selected executives and other employees.



12.0 Executives and Directory'

Heartland New Zealand Limited

Directors

Geoffrey Ricketts Jeffrey Greenslade Graham Kennedy Gary Leech Christopher Mace Gregory Tomlinson

Executives

Chris Flood Michael Jonas James Mitchell Mark Mountcastle Simon Owen Will Purvis Sarah Selwood Chairman Managing Director Director Director Director Director

Head of Retail & Consumer Head of Strategic & Product Development Chief Operating Officer Chief Risk Officer Chief Financial Officer Head of Business & Rural Head of Human Resources

Registered Office

75 Riccarton Road Riccarton Christchurch 8011

PO Box 8623 Riccarton Christchurch, 8440

T 0508 432 785 E info@heartland.co.nz W www.heartland.co.nz

Heartland Bank Limited

Directors

Bruce Irvine Jeffrey Greenslade Nicola Greer John Harvey Graham Kennedy Geoffrey Ricketts Richard Wilks Michael Jonas

Executives

Chris Flood Michael Jonas James Mitchell Mark Mountcastle Simon Owen Will Purvis Sarah Selwood Chairman Managing Director Director Director Director Director Director Executive Director

Head of Retail & Consumer Head of Strategic & Product Development Chief Operating Officer Chief Risk Officer Chief Financial Officer Head of Business & Rural Head of Human Resources

Registered Office

75 Riccarton Road Riccarton Christchurch 8011

PO Box 8623 Riccarton Christchurch 8440

T 0508 432 785 E info@heartland.co.nz W www.heartland.co.nz

Auditors

KPMG KPMG Centre, 18 Viaduct Harbour, Auckland 1140 T 09 367 5800

Share Registry

Link Market Services Limited Level 16, Brookfields House 19 Victoria Street West, Auckland 1010 T 09 375 5998 F 09 375 5990 E enquiries@linkmarketservices.co.nz W www.linkmarketservices.co.nz

1 Correct as at 20 September 2013.

